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Overview of the period

The Directors present their seport and the consolidated {inancial statements for $G Global Topeo Limited, “the Company”, and
1ts subsidiartes. together “the Group™ or “Study Group’, tor the period ended 31 December 2019, The Company is domiciled in
the Unted Kingdom with its registered office at 1 Billinton Wav. Brighton. Fast Sussex, BNI 4LF, and the Group s
headquartered in London.

Incorporation and Acquisition

The Company was incorporated on 14 February 2019 in order 1o acquire EDU UK Topeo Limted. the parent of the Study Group
family of companies. The acquisilion subsequentiy occurred on 31 May 2019, Further detaiis of this acquisition are contained
in Note 29 of the financial statements.

At the date of acquisition, Ardian B0 Fund VI B S.I.P. ("Ardian’) became the majonty shurcholder ol Study Group. following
almost nine ycars ol ownership by Providence Fquity Partners.

In add:tion to executive Directors Emima Lancaster (CEQ) and Nick Williams (CF()}, the Board includes {ive non-executive
Directors from Ardian. We were also delighted to welcome Sir Keith Burnett FRS, former Viee Chanceller of University of
Shetffield. to the Board shortly after the acquisition. Study Group's Chairman since July 2019 is Ralph Kugler, a former executive
with Unilever and Chairman of Cognila and amongst other education activities. a current Board Trustee on the largest primary
school MAT. Please see pages 14-13 for more details about the irectors.

Pro-forma Group results

The statutory reporting includes seven menths of trading for the Group since it acquired DU UK Topeo Limited on 31 Mayv
2019. In order e provide a meaningful understanding of the {iroup’s performance. the Directors have also included i their
report pro-forma results of the Group to show the full twelve months” results of Studv Group as il Study Group had been owned
by SG Global Topeo Limited from 1 Januany 2019, and provided commentary against the comparable 12 month prior vear
period. These pro-forma 12 months™ results are reported incorporating the impact of [IFRS 16 as if it had been in plice for both
periods and referred to as “Full Year™ results throughout.

Overview

Study Group is the leading 1nternational provider of international education. driving success lor its students and partners. Its
vore business 1s the delivery of i ligher Education and Pathwayv programmes, relerred 1o hereafter as the “University Partnerships™
business. This entails providing undergraduate foundation or International Year 1, Pre-Masters and Masters programmes (o
international students in the United Kingdom, burepe, the United States. Canada, Australia and New Zealand. [ delivers these
programmes 1n seven countries, primarily on the campuses of its pariner universities (o international students from over 140
countries.

The results throughout this report are wholly attributable to the University Partnerships business. The Group operates three
operating, segments: United Kingdom & Lurope ((UK&LUN. Australia & New Zealand ¢ ANZ™Y and North America ( NA™.

[n 2019 there was strong overall continuing revenue perfommance ol £148.6 million [or the seven months and £275 7 militon for
the il Year (2018 Full Year: £269.7 million™h),

The Group has continued with 1ts strategy of developing partnerships with chosen universities, both new and existing. During
2019, it renewed two university partnerships in Europe, Tilburg University and Hanze Universityv. Tt also signed two new UK
partners during the vear: Cardiff University (launched in 2020) and the University of Aberdeen (launched in 2019). In the US,
DePaul Umiversity and the University of Hartford were acquired trom EC English. [n 2020 the Group acquired Insendi Limited,
an enline feaming platform based in the UK, refer to Note 29 for more deails.

The strong Group revenue perlormance ol the University Partnerships business converied to adjusted EBITDA® of £22.5 millton
and reported EBITDA™ of £12.3 million tor the seven month period and adjusted EBITDA of £53.0 million and reported
LBITDA of £40.0 mitlion for the Full Year (2018 Full Year adjusted and reported ERTTDA™: £36.8 million and £37.3 million
respectively ).

1 Adjusted EBETIA for both 2018 and 2019 is defined as earnings before interest. tax. depreciation, amortisation. impaitment and exceptional and other items
(see Note & for details of exceptional and other items) and is reported under IFRS 16. Exceptional items are those which are material in size and are non-recurring
in pature. Other items are not necessarily non-reewrring, in nature, but the Direetors believe that it is helpful to show these amounts separately as theyv are not
direetly linked to the trading operations of the business,

" Reported EBITDA is defined as camings before interest. tax. depreciation. amortisation. and impairment,

2018 revenue and adjusted and reported EBITDA have been restated at 2019 foreign exchange rales 1o show the results al constant currency. Amounts at
actual rates have been disclosed on page 3. 2018 full year results have been restated as if' IFRS 16 was applied from 1 January 2018
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Operating and financial review

Key performance indicators

The fmancial and non-financial KPIs for the continuing business are as follows. These KPlIs are selected for monitoring of the
Giroup's medium term goal of continued revenue and EBITDA growth. Given the shortened statutory period. pro-torma Full
Year 2019 and 2018 [gures under [FRS 16 have been provided for comparabilite

The strong Group revenue performance of the core business converted to adjusted FBITDA™ of £33 .0 million for the Full Year.
compared to £36.8 million for the 2018 Full Year at constant currency'™. This decline was predominantly due to a change in the
mix of programmes 1 Ausiralia. refer to the Australia & New Zealand commentary on the next page for details. Pxeluding this.
adjusted EBITIIA was reasonably flat after making additienal investments in our sales and marketing capability, positioning the
Group well for future growth.

Statutery results Pro-forma Full Year results
2019 2019 2018 %
7 months 12 months 12 moenths™  Variance
Revenue (£m) 148.6 275.7 2729 1%
Constant currency adjustment "' (£m) (3.2
Revenue at constant currency (£m) 148.6 2787 2697 2%
Adjusted FBITIDA" (£m) 22.5 53.0 384 (9%
Constant currency adjustment ™ (£m) (1.6
Adjusted EBITDA®™ at constant currency (£m) 22.5 53.0 368 ¢ 7%
Opcerating (loss)/profit before Exceptional and
Other items (£m) (1.3) 13.4 4.4 =100%
New student enrolments (NSE) @ n/a 14450 13.303 9%

I'he Group’s results by operating segment are sumimarised as follows and shown at constant curreney™ Lo allow for a like-
lor-like Year on Yeuar comparison:

Revenue
Statutory results Pro-forma Full Year results
2019 2019 2018 Yo

£m 7 months™ 12 months 12 months'™  Variance
On a continiyig operations hasis under [FRS 16:

United Kingdom & Jurope 79.4 153.4 1391 10%
Australia & New Z.caland 62.0 1121 1239 (10%0
Noith America 7.2 10.2 6.7 32%
Total 148.6 275.7 2069.7 2%

(i) See definition on page 2.

(i)  An NSE represents one new student amiving and enrolling in a course.

(1) 2018 revenue and adjusted EBITTIA have been restated at 2019 foreign exchange rates to show the resulis at constant currency.

(iv) 2018 tull vear results have been restated as if IFRS 16 was applied from 1 January 2018,

{(v)  The parent entity was incorporated on 14 February 2019 and the acquisition ot the trading group oceurred on 3t May 2019, thus the results reflect
7 months of trade.
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Adjusted EBITDA®

Statutory results Pro-forma Full Year results
2019 2019 2018 %o

£m 7 months? 12 months 12 months" Varianece
On a contining operations basis under IFRS 16:

iJnited Kingdom & Furope 15.9 37.5 354 6%
Austrahia & New Zealand 21.8 42.4 491 (14%a)
North America (1.2) 2.7) (4.3) 20%
Total University Partnerships 36.5 77.2 80.0 (4%
Shared functional & corporate costs (14.0) (24.2) (23.2) 404
Total 22.5 53.0 56.8 (7%

Reconeiliation of reported TBITDA to adjusted EBITDA at actual toreign exchange rates.

Statutory results FPro-forma Full Year results
2019 2019 2018 Yo
£m 7 months® 12 months 12 months® Variance
On a continning operations basis wnder IFRS 16
Reported ERITIA A defiued i i page 2 12.3 40.0 SR K (32%)
Exceptional and other items 10.2 13.0 £0.4) > 00%
Adjusted FBITDA e defmedanopon page 2) 22.5 53.0 58 4 {9%0)

Review of resuits by Operating Segment

The following section provides commentary [or the Full Year pro-jorma result against the comparable twelve month prior vear
period re-translated at constant curresicy 2019 foreign exchange rates and the adoption of IFRS 16 1o allow for a like-Jor-like
COMPUrISORn.

Overall Study Group saw NSL (New Students FEnrolled) grow from 13.303 to 14,450, an increase of 9%,

[N & Furope

Full vear revenue in 2019 inereased by 10% to £153.4 million (2018: £139.1 million), mainly as a result of higher NSE with kev
university partners across the UKL There was also a revenue benefit from a favourable centre mix. with more volume in higher
priced centres. Adjusted EBITDA growth was 6% to £37.5 milhon (2018: £35.4 million),

Australia & New Zealand

In Australia, a change in programumes at the Australian National University ¢ ANU') resulted in lower NSE in the vear. This was
oflset by NSE growth in other ANZ partners and the inclusion of the first tull vear of the University of Waikato. resulting in an
overall small 2% decline in ANY, NSE in 2019, Lixcluding the ANV ANZ NSE grew by 3%. Increased student volumes across
i tange of programmes and campuses partially offset the ANU decline but led to overall revenue decline of 10% to £112.1
million (2018 £123 9 million). This led to an adjusted EBITDA decline of 14% to £42 4 million {2018: £49.1 million).

North America

Full veur revenue in 2019 increased by 32% to £10.2 mitlion (2018: £6.7 million). NSLE were up 71% to 856 (2018: 500). The
merease was primarily due to an increase in student numbers at Baylor University, as well as the impact ol opening two new
centres - DelPaul and Iartford. This provides a streng foundation for revenue growth in luture vears. Adjusted EBITDA for the
veur improved to a loss of £2.7 million (2018: £4.5 nullion loss). North America reported a foss as a result of further upfront sct-
up costs incurred i 2019 for new centres.

Shared functional and corporate costs

Funectional and corporate costs. bemg largely central I1. finance, HR and head olfice costs increased by 4% 10 £24.2 million
(2018: £23.2 million). due 1o investments made to strengthen central functions 1o support growth i the business, These costs
are managed and controlled centrallv and as such are reported separately from the Group's operating segments.

(1) See delinition on page 3 for Statutory results footnole (v) and tor 2018 results footnote (iv).
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The following section provides conunentary mainly for the seven months period to 31 December 20119

Exceptional and Other items included in reported EBITDA

Fxceptional items are those which are material in size and are non-recurring n nature. Other items are not necessarily non-
recurring in nature, but the Directors believe that it 13 helplul to show these amounts separately as they are not directly linked to
the recurning trading operations of the business.

Total Exceptional and Other items included i reported EBITDA for the period ended 31 December 2019 (as deflined in footnote
{1y on page 2) total £10.2 million and include £6.0 million of transaction fees in respect of the change of ownership. £1.9 million
slrategic investments related 1o a corporate strategy project. £1.8 million restructuning costs. £0.9 million of shareholder and
management fees and £(0.4) million relating to property provisions.

Depreciation and amortisation
Deprectation and amortisation for the period ended 31 December 2019 1otal £23.7 mullion. The Full Year total of £37.6 milion
(2018: £31.0 nullion) includes additional amounts expensed under [I'RS 16

Finance expense

The net tinance expense for the period ended 31 December 2019 was £14 8 million. The largest finance expense was interest on
the term {oans of £9.8 million which have an interest margin of 6.00%. The revolving credit facility ("RCT) remained undrawn
at the period end due 1o adequate cash held across the Group. In addstion. other finance costs include non-commitment tees on
the undrawn RCF of £0 1 million. amortisation of deferred borrowing costs of £0.7 million, IFRS 16 net finance costs for leases
of 2.8 million and excepuional tinance costs of £0.7 million arising from forcign exchange losses,

Taxation

For the period to 31 December 2019, the Group received a total tax eredit of £4.0 million being a current Lux charge of £1.0
million and a deferred 1ax eredi of £3.0 million. The deferred tax eredit was largely due to the accumulation of unused tax losses
as well as the difference between allowable tax depreciation and aceounting depreciation. During this period, a net cash tax
outtlow of £0.2 million was paid predominantly relating to tax payable in China.

Lass after taxation
After deducting the above depreciation and ameortisation. finance expenses and laxation {rom Reported FBITDA of £12.3
million. the loss aller taxation from continuing operations [or the period to 31 December 2019 was £22.5 million.

Balance sheet position
Net debt, being external borrowings less available cash. was £177.5 mullion at 31 December 2019, Despite the loss tor the pertod.
cash rematned positive and the revolving credit facility of £30.0 million was fully unutilised as at 31 December 2019.

Cash flow

The Group generated free cash intlow (being cash available to service debt) of £30.3 million in the peried ended 31 December
2019, I'ree cash flow for the total business mcluded cash exceptional outflows of £3.7 million, a cash inflow of £44.0 million
refating to movements in net working capital due to advance student fees colleetions mainly in the UKL a net cash tax outtlow
of £0.2 milliorn. and capital expenditure of £10.5 million,

Fixeeptional cash outflows primanily related to a Group strategy proect (£1.6 million) and restructuring costs (£1.2 million).

Capital expenditure i the period was for continued investment across the business, both in 1T developments and langible spend.
ineluding taunch cosis tor new centres.

A teconcihation of adjusted EBITDA 1o free cash flow 1s set out below:

Reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to Free Cash flon 2019
7 Months

£m

Adjusted EBITDA for the continuing business 225
LBITDA attributable o discontinued businesses {1.8)
Cash exceptional and other items (3.7
Movement in working capital 44.0
Cash tax paid (0.2)
Capita] expenditure and other investment activities (10.5)
Free cash flow 50.3
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2020 developments including the impact of and response to Covid-19
In February 2020 shortly before the first impact of Covid-19 the Group acquired Insendi Limited. an online learmning platform
based in the UK, refer 1o Note 30 for more details.

2020 has seen unprecedented challenges for many sectors zround the world due to public health restrictions on international
travel and face-to-face gatherings. The impact on international education was Uirst seen by Study Group™s student reermtment
team in China and Singapore, quickly tollowed by a series of regional lockdowns in Australia and New Zcaland. and then m the
UK and continental Furope,

In the face of these changes, Studv Group mmmediately mplemented a coordinated senior team to support the satety and well-
being of students and staiT and to lead the neeessary actions globallv. including:

«  Developing plans focused on enabling the continuation of high-quality teaching and student wellare to secure student
satisfaction and successful progression. regardless of whether students had remained in the destination country or
returned to their home countries.

+  Working closelv with our university partners and in-house academic teams (o prvot our Study Centres to high-quality
blended and enline learning which was recognised for progression by these institutions.

»  Throughout this period we alsa drew on the expertise of the Group’s recently -acquired online learning platform, Insendi
Limited. which worked to quickly move our online oftering bevond emergency provision and to embed the principles
of best practice into online teaching. peer engagement and feedback.

«  Sunultaneously successlully moving central functions and operational tcams lully online, developing new formats and
channels for positive communications and engagement.

As a direct result of the above actions, satisfaction rates, continuation and progresston remained strong.

The impact of Covid-19 has continued into the second halt of 2020 and as a consequence the Group experienced reductions in
student reeruitment during this period relative to pre-pandemic expectations. Although it remains the case that students continue
o wish to pursue studies overseas at leading international universities. thev are also concerned about saletv, and limited
miternational travel has meant that demand across the market has sottened. Despite this. Study Group made full use of its own
ability to control costs. made use of government support schemes across the world. and instigated targeted student recruitment
and projeet development to adapt w0 a rapidly changing and uncertain context. Study (roup has been strongly supporied in this
approach by ils majority sharcholder Ardian.

Study Group marked its 25th anniversary as a company in 2020, taking pride in its track record as a leading provider of
international education and in its response o a global pandemic which demanded a eoordinated response, a focus on the needs
of students. close working with umversity partners and the rapid cmbedding ol innovation in online education across our
operations. As a result, the company has fast-tracked kev arcas ol its strategy and is lookmg forward with confidence 1o a period
of innovation and renewal bevond Covid-19.

Going concern

AL3T Oetober 2020 the Group bad cash and cash equivalents of £29.8m. After consideration of the impact of Covid-19 on the
business as discussed below, including the application of scenario and sensitivity analysis, and the ongeing support ol the
(iroup’s majority shareholder Ardian, there is positive cash headroom on committed facilities throughout the going concern
assessment period. This ineludes a commitment [tom Ardian to provide a capital injection of up to £30m tf required. as part ol
an agreement that has been reached with the Group's lenders. That agreement 1s subject to legal documentation. which is
currently m the process of being {inalised.

[n making the geing concern assessment. the Dircetors have taken mlo account the ongoing impact of Covid-19 on the Group.
The Directors have prepared a series of trading performance forecasts in terms of the impact of the pandemic on the business.
The going coneern assessment recognises the inherent uncertainty associated with any foreeasting and the Directors believe that
the Group's strong {inanecial and market position. together with ils proactive management ol evolving market conditions
including closcly managing costs and ensuring that liquidity is maintamed with suflicient headroom. will ensure that the Group
wiil manage through the situation and will emerge strongly.

in an illustrative extreme downside scenario for the purposes of stress-testing the Groups strong tinancial position. NSE for the
[irst six month of 2021 could be over 30% lower than the same peried in 2020, and NSLE for the sceond six nonths of 2021 no
better than the comparable peried 1n 2020 which was impacted by Covid-19 before cash resources would reach zere. Based on
current evidence available to the Directors at the date of this report. the assumptions in this scenario are considered to be highly
unlikely. Therefore, under all reasonable downside seenarios modelled, and assuming the lnalisation of the agreement with the
Group's lenders as referenced above, the group has suflicient committed facilities.
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The Group's term loan currently mneludes a single tinancial eovenant requiring that the Group's leverage ratto remains within
agreed limits. with which the Group was in compliance throughout the vear and since the year end. The apreement that has been
reached with the Group's lenders includes the setting aside of this covenant {or a peried that cxtends beyond the next 12 months.
subject to final legal documentation, and incorporating the commitment {Tom Ardian to provide a capital injection of up to £30m
il required. As a result of a reduction in NSE 1 the second six months of 2020, as outlined in more detail in the section above.
the “last 12 months ERITDA” used in the covenant caleulation during the going concern assessment period is expected 1o be
materially lower than it would have been before Covid-19. I the agreement o set aside the covenant had not been reached with
the lenders. a financial covenant breach resulting in the facilities becoming repavable frem June 2021 would otherwise have
been foreeast.

(iiven the above. the Board 1s confident that the Company and the Group will have adequate resources (o continue to operate for
the foresceable future. Because the agreement with the Group’s lenders remains subject to final legal documentation at the date
of approval of these financial statements. the Directors have concluded that these circumstances represent a material uncertainty,
which may cast significant doubt on the Company s and the Group’s ability 1o continue as a going concern and realise its assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normat course of business. However. because the Directors consider that any financial covenant
breach in the next 12 months from the date of these finaneial statements is hughly unlikely due to the agreement reached, and
that the Company and the Group will have adequate resources to continte mn operational existence for the foreseeable future.
they continue to adopt the geing concen basis 1n the financial statements.

Strategy
Study Group 1s committed to a strategy of continuing to strengthen ils position as a leading provider of international education,
The Group has identified four kev pillars to achieve its stratepy:

Stident Suceess: A key tactor in the success of the Group's partnerships is continuing to drive successtul student otitcomes und
high progression rates to the partner institutions, During the year the Group saw a 1% improvement on 2018 progression rates,

Parmmer Success: Study (roup aims 1o continuously mprove the serviee it provides to all its stakeholders including its kes
partners,

Tighty Fugaged Team: The Group understands that recruiting, developing and retaming a strong team will be eritical to
achicving 1ts strategic objectives. It is also focused on ensuring that its cmplovees are continually learning and growing at work.

Cirgwth-Driven: Working with the best university partners (o ensure Study Group can olfer valuable propositions to its students
to support them with the next phase of their education. To this end, the Group is constantlv leoking for new opportunitics to
mmprove the breadth of source channels in order Lo provide cultural and cconomic diversity for its extsting partners, as well as
expandimg its offering and maintaining strong relatonships with current partners. as evidenced by the renewals of two of its
existing universily partnerships durning the period (nine in 2018). The Group believes thal this, coupled with a longer term goal
to build new university partnerships and develop new products and business lines, positions it to be a global leader in
internatienal higher education and deliver exceptional student outcomes. This can be evidenced by the addition of tour new
partnerships during the year and the acquisition ot Insendi in February 2020 to develop the Group™s online learning capabilities.

Study Giroup believes that this strategy. combined with a continued focus on operational effectiveness and efficiency, will be
supportive of long term revenue and DBRITDA growth.

Outlook

Orerall, the Group 1s pleased with the 2019 business performance and NS volumes. The Board has considered the below
Principal Risks and Uncertainties. in particular the potential impact of Covid-19 on the business as discussed in the Going
Concern seetion above and 15 confident that its strong financial and market position, together with its proactive management of
the impact of the outbreak. will ensure that the Group will manage through the situation and will emerge strongly.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

A nisk management framevork s in place consisting of divisional compliance. risk and assurance boards that report monthly to
a (ilobal Compliance, Risk and Assurance Beard ( GCRAB™). The GCRAI has as its key objectives the following:

»  Drive focus on the achicvement of top grade comphance

*  Owersee. test, challenge and provide mput into nitiatives and activities that are integral to delivering top grade
compliance

»  TFilter and prioritise new ideas for improving compliance and munaging enterprise risks

= Menitor adherence to all stajutory complance measures and requirements across the Group

+  Receive and consider output from any Divisional Comphance, Risk and Assurance Groups

+  Identify and evaluate all significant enterprise risks and ensure they are appropriately owned and managed

»  [nsure that all key stakeholders are aligned in pursuit of the achievement of top grade compliance

The Board is responsible for overseeing the framework. In addition. 2019 saw the Group establish an intermal audit Tunction.
The meost signiticant risks are described below,

- Natural catastrophcs

The global economy has been and remains affected by the Covid-19 pandemic. The Group’s management are actively engaged
on a daily hasis in supporting current and future students. and are tollowing public health guidance in cach of the territories
which 1t operates. It is not currently possible to accurately determine how long the pandemic and associated disruption will
continue, and therefore the consequent tinaneial impact on the Group. Some students have delaved, in some casos, cancelled
therr studies as a result of the outbreak. The Group is keeping its resource levels and investments under close review in order to
respond as lexibly as possible to the situation as 1t evolves. The Board is conlident that its strong (inancial and market position.
together with its proactive management of the impact of the outbreak, will ensure that the Group will manage through the
situation and will emerge strongly. The Dircetors” going concern assessment is detailed in the Strategic Report on page 6.

- Economic, market and trading risks

Industry and political risks

[f foreign direct investment in emerging markets were to slow down or there were to be political uncertamty in source markels.
demand for a toreign-educated. Tnghish-speaking workforce may decline. The Group’s students join from over 140 countries
worldwide. which provides a degree of mitigation against these risks.

- The UK future relationship with the EU, visa frameworks and immigration policy

The Group's ability te reeruit international students to its programmes depends on the ability of those students Lo procure visas.
Study Group engages proactively with Government agencies i discusstons on visa policy and frameworks and continually
monitors students’ processes through (raining agents in market.

With regards o the Eurepean Union (UYL it 15 unclear what the future status will be of students from outside of the United
Kinpdom (UK), but within the EU. [However, the number of student weeks® taught to I students in the UK business represents
less than 1% ol total weeks across the Group and therefore management consider the associated risk 1o the Group to he fow,

- Contract risks

L niversity partners

The Group maintains relationships in the form of contractual agreements with its university pariners. 1t works closely with these
university pariners to ensure that it maintains a good relationship and is adhering to the terms of its conlractual arrangements.

Agent relationships

The Ciroup relies on a global network of education agents Lo recruit its international students and market its programmes. The
management structure is designed to ensure that the Group manages its agent relationships effectively and 1t constantly reviews
ils approach to casure that it ts able to continuously improve in this area.

-~ Regulatory oversight

The majerity of our partnerships are subject to regulatory compliance and are oversecen by independent third party regulators.
The Group is committed to assuring adherence to its regulatory obligations and, bevond ihat, achieving top grade compliance.
All of our centres. colleges. and campuses are operated by appropriately qualified personnel and, where deemed appropriate.
central staff, including internal audit, ate emploved to review compliance with regulatory requirements and. where possible.
drive continual improvement.

(i) Student weeks taught represents the number of weeks in which a single student is taught in one of its courses or subjects.
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Financial position

The Group has a leverage covenant attached Lo its term loans. The required leverage ratio reduces over time and therefore in
order o meet the covenant. the Group musl continue to deliver growth in consolidated EBITDA. The Group monitors its
covenant requirements on a regular basis 1o ensure that it has time to take mitigating actton m the event of a projected reduction
in 1ts leverage ratio. The impact that Covid-19 has had on the business and its financial position, and consequently on the
irectors” poing concern assessment 13 detailed in the Strategie Report on page 6

Refer to the Directors” Report for discussion on the Group's foreign currency and hquidity risk

Business systems risks

The Group relies on mlermation technology systems and its online platform to operate its websites, facilitate student earolment
online, deliver 1ts programmes and maintain cost-efficient operations. In common with many businesses. the Group's
information technolegy systems and online plattonm could be impacted by interruption from both internal and external threats
(n order te mitigate these risks. Study Group's production [T svstems arc housed and backed up appropriately to minimise the
risk of catastrophic failure. All svstems are meonitored for environmental factors and system performance by a dedicated team
ol professionals.

Reputational risk

The Group's reputation could be adversely aflceted by its ability to adequately update and expand the content of its existing
programmes and develop new programmes, as well as the quality and mtegrity of its curricula. teaching staff or pro gramme
facilities. The Group continuously reviews 1ts operations to ensure that it is able to respond to and mitigate any reputational
risks.

Litigation risk

In common with many other businesses, from time to time, the Group is subject to litigation. The occurrence of matenal litigation
could have an adverse eftecl on its reputation and linancial results in the event of an unfavourable outcome. The Crroup emplovs
mternal counsel and retains outside counsel to provide advice in the event of any litigation.
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Section 172 of the Companies Act 2016
The Board is fully avware of its duty to promote the success of the Company pursuant to Section 172 of the Companies Act 2016,
Consequently, cach Dircclor must act in a wayv s/he considers. in good faith. would be most likels to promote the suceess of the
Company for the benetit of its members as a whole, and in doing so have regard (amongst other matters) to:

+  the likely consequence of any decision in the long term

+  the interests of the company s emnplovees

+  the need to fosler the company s business relationships with suppliers. customers and others

«  the impact of the company ™s operations on the community and the environment

»  the desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct

+  the need to act fairly as between members of the company.

"The Board understands the business can only grow and prosper 1f it respecets the views of students, University Partners, suppliers.
and sharcholders to whom the Board is accountable. The Board seeks to align the Company s strategic direction to the
shareholders™ long-term aspirations for sustainability, growth. diversilication and mvestment.

The Board has safeguards in place to ensure the long term implications ol decisions are being considered. Regular five vear
planning allows the Compans 1o preserve the value of the business over the long term and whilst there are internal boards that
have delegated authorily to review long term consequences, the Board conduets an appropriate level of due diligence where
required. The GCRABR, as defined on page 8. maintains a monthly dashboeard that indicales a rating for various sectors of the
business.

The development of the Group's strategy under the Board s direction (as stated on page 7) sets a target for the Group to become
the leading provider of international education by driving success tor the Group’s students and partners. The Board ensures there
is clear dialogue with stakeholders about the Group™s vision through communications such as weeklv new sletters. social media
posts (Workplace) und presentations by members of the global executive and senior leadership teams. The Directors consider
feedback [rom the stakeholders in reviewing progress of and aiding principal decisions in relation to [wture strategy .

During the Covid-19 pandemic. the Dircetors have considered the health and satety of both students and stalT 1w be of paramount
importance. leading to a number of specilic actions:
*  Moving 13000 students online and creating an environment where the majority of stalt were able to work from home.
= Where centres have re-opened the directors have ensured they comply with the relevamt Covid-19 guidelines.
+  The Directors have also provided support to emplovees working rom home in terms of ensuring a high level of staff
engagement comprising regular online global town hall meetings, supported by many other local and regional meelings.
*  The orgamsation of regular online student and emplovee survess as a method of gathering leedback from both groups.
»  The Group continues to allow employees to benefit from various government backed schemes to help sateguard rotes.

The Directors have also recognised the threat to the Group's data and information systems created by remote working and have
cngaged additional I'l" support to provide enhanced saleguards in this area. The financial impact of the pandemic on the busiess
and consequently on sharcholders has been outlined in page 6 ol the Strategic Report.

The Board recognises that whilst prometing the success of the Company for the benel1t of the sharcholders 1s paramount. the
inlerests of other stakeholders including the worktorce. students, agents and partners is also erucial The Board continues to
cngage with the workforee and has taken into consideration their interests through annual policy review s, engagement surnvevs,
an online HR service portal and the mtreduction of self-service carcer development platforms. Also tefer 1o the employment
policies section within the Directors” report on page 12 Students are encouraged to provide [eedback o the Company and also
hay e roll on sub-committees that ultimately feed up to the Board. Agents are surveved for their feedback. The relationship with
university partners are maintained through frequent steering/management meetings.

The Board 1s committed (o high standards of ethical conduct, social responsibility, community engagement and environmental
sustatnability . [t currently achieves this through its implementation of (iroup policies, training and by ensuring the welfare of
students and staft’ is maintained. The Beard reviews further ways W address these commitments on a regular basis. 'The Board
has continued to create a positive environmental and social impact with the “Building Futures™ initiative which this year has
locused on fundraising to help reconstruct schools in Bangladesh. Refer to *Charitable contributions™ on page 13 for further
detaal on this initiative.

On behalf of the Board of Dircctors

E Lancaster
Director
11 December 2020
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

General Information

SG Global Topeo Limited (“the Company ). formally Surrev Topeo Limited, 1s a holding company registered in Fngland and
Wales with the Company number 11827427 The Dircetors present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements
for 8¢ Global Topeoe Limited the Company™ and 1ts subsidiaries, together “the Group™ or “Study Group’, for the period ended
31 December 2019

Principal Activities
Study Group is a leading provider of international education. It delivers its mversity Partnerships programmes to international
students from over 140 countries.

The subsidiaries and associated undertakings of the Group in the period, including those registered overseas. are listed in Note
13 to the financial statements.

Ultimate Parent Company
I the view of the Dircctors, the ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party is Ardian LBO Fund VI 13 S.L.P.. a company
incorporated in Irance.

Result and Dividends

The Crroup Toss for the seven month reporting period afler taxation amounted to £24.9 million including discontinued operations
and g loss after taxation of £22.5 mullion for continuing operations. OF the Group loss for the period. no loss is atiributable to
non-controlling interests. The Dirgetors do not recommend payment ot a dividend.

Business Review and Future Developments

The information contained in the Strategic Report constitutes the review of the Group’s business U also contains details of
expected tuture developments in the business of the Group, information about expenditure and kev performance indicators used
by management.

Directors
The persons who were Directors at any ttme during or since the end of the financial period are listed below: details of the
Directors and their background are set out on pages 14 to 15

K Bumett, Sir (appointed 18 June 2019)

R Kugler (appointed | July 2019)

I3 Ladricre (appointed 31 May 2019

F Lancaster (appointed 31 May 2019)

Il Little appointed 14 Februan, 20019)

O Personnaz (appointed 14 February 2019

M Van Cauwenberge (appointed 31 May 2019}
N Williams (appointed 31 May 2019)

13 Witcher ¢appointed 31 May 2019)

Directors’ Indemnitics

The Company maintains liability imsurance for its 1irectors and ofticers. The Company has also provided an indemnity for its
Directors, which is a qualitving third parly indemmty provision for the purposes of the Companics Act 2006, This indemnity
has been in place throughout the firancial period and is in place as at the date of this report.

Financial Instruments

The Group's [inancial instruments comprise borrowings. cash and liguid resources, and various items, such as trade debtors and
trade credilors that arise directly {tem its operations. The (roup's [inancial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade ereditors and
other ereditors, the main purpose of which is 1o ramse [inance for the Group's operations. The Group also has finarcial assets
comprising cash. trade and other deblors,

It 15, and has been throughout the period under review. the Group's policy that no speculative trading in {inancial instruments
shall be undertaken

The main risks arising from the Group's linancial mstruments arce inferest rate risk, liquidity risk. eredit risk and foreign currency

risk. The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing cach of these risks and they are summarised below . These policies
have been reviewed and remain unchanged.
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Interest rate risk

The Group's primary exposure to market interest rates relates to the Group's long -term borrowing obhgations. The nisk of the
Uroup being exposed Lo movement in mterest rates 1s partially mitigated through the use of different currency loans m Pound
Sterling and Australian Dollars with different variable rate basis of LIBOR and BBSY. The interest rates currently applicable to
this variable rate debt are LIBOR for Pound Sterling loans and BBBSY for Australian Dollar loans plus 6%. For the rolling credit
facility the margin 15 set at .73 %. The Group also mav at times hold cash and cash equivalents which earn interest at @ vanable
rate. The current banking arrangement has interest rate floors n place tor both GBP ((£.5% LIBOR) and AUID (1.53% BRSY)
which mmpacts the interest rates the Group is exposed to and the Group utihises interest rate cap agreements to manage and
mitigate its exposure to changes in interest rates.

In August 2019, the Group enlered into two interest rate cap agreements Lo cap the tloating interest rates on a 6-monthlyv basis
on 30% of the GBP (£37.5 million) and 50% of the AUD term loans ($107.3 million) untl 30 August 2022, covering 50% ol
the Group's total loans. he Group will continue to regularly monitor and sensitise interest rate risk and will consider additional
interest rate arrangements to manage and mitigate its exposure to changes in interest rates i this 1s considered appropriate.

As part of the Group's regular review of interest rate risk, the Group 1s aware of and has considered the tuture elimination of
LIBOR. It is currently considered there 1s no significant risk around this elimination as the agreements in place for the long-term
borrowing obligations have agreed terms that aceount for any unavailability of LIBOR rates.

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in {inancial loss to the Group.
This risk is mitigated by agents and students generally paving tuition fees prior to course commencertient.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for iquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, who have built an appropriate liguidity
risk management framework for the management of the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves. banking facilitics and reserve borrowing
tfactlities, by continuously monitoring ferecast and actual cash tlows, and by matching the maturity protiles of financial assets
and liabilities. The Group actively monitors complianee with its covenant relating to the term loans Note 21 includes detail of
additional undrawn tfacilities that are available to the Company and the Group. Also refer to page 6 {or specitic consideration
given to hquidity with respeet Lo the poing concern assessment.

Foreign currency risk

The Group undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies. hence expericnees translational and transactional
exchange rate exposures. The Group is mainly exposed to movements between Pound Sterling and Australian Dollars/US
Dollars. EBITDA for the period was generated as follows: 45.5% in Pound Sterling: 86 0% in Australian Dollars, {22.8%) in
Singapore Dollars. (6.1%) in US Dotlars and (2.6%) other. The transaction risk is mitigated bv revenues being billed in the
curreney where the services/operating costs are delivered/incurred.

The largest elements of the Group external debt. being 1ts term loans, are denominated 30% in Pound Sterling and 50% in
Australian Doltars. H hedpes the foreign exchange exposure on the Australian Dollar term loan using a net mvestment hedge
(sec Note 21), In addition. 1ts leverage ratio (upon which its bank loan covenant compliance is caloulated) is impacted to a eertain
extent by movements in foreign exchange rates: however the impact on EBITDA and net debt will to 4 cerlain extent oftset and
is something management regularly monitors and sensitises. It continues to review whether 1t would be benetficial to take out a
foreign currency hedge to mitigate this risk.

Employment Policies

The Group's employment policies are regularly reviewed and updated to ensure that they remain eltective. The policies are
designed to promote a cotlaborative working environment, [ree from discrimination which supports the reeruitment and retention
of effective employees. Study Ciroup promotes cqual opportunity and the avoidance of diserimination, by treating individuals
cqually and with faimess at all times when making cmployvment decisions. The Group achieves this by reaching objective
solutions bascd on merit, and ensuring that sny unjustifiable barriers are removed. Staff are encouraged to raise any matters that
are important to them within the workplace, in order to ensure that they are provided with appropriate levels of support.

it is the policy of the Group to follow equal oppornity cmplovment practices and these include the [ull consideration of
employment prospeets for the disabled. Applications for emplovment by disabled persons are always [ully considered, bearing
in mind the aptitudes of the applicant coneerned. [t is the poliey of the Group that the training, carecer development and promotion
of disabled persons should, as fur as possible, be identical with that of other emplovees. Arrangements are made. wherever
possible, for retraining cmployees who become disabled, to cnable them to perform work identified as appropriate to their
aptitudes.
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The Group places importance on the contributions to be made by all emplovees to the progress of the Group and aims o keep
then: informed bs the use of tormal and informal communications as well as the Group’s intranet site, email, emplovee forums
and newsletters. Via these mediums. emplovees are made aware of the financial and economie fuctors affecting the pertormance
of the company, as well as encouraging our individuals to fulfil their potential and to build positive working relationships withm
a flourishing and dvnamic environment. The Group also incentivises certain role’s performance through various bonus and other
reward svstems relevant to their level and role. All balanced views are welcomed. and it routinely celebrates diversity across our
global workforce. students and partners. Refer to the $172 report on pages 10 tor details on how the Board of [Directors engage
with employ ees and take into account their interest wiwn making keyv business decisions.

Political Contributions
Neither the company nor any of its subsidiaries made any political donations or ineurred any political expenditure during the
period.

Busincss Relationships
The Directors have had regard to the need to toster the Company’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others
as discussed in the 5172 report on page 10

Charitable Contributions

During the period. the Group made donations of £16.600 (the Group's subsidiaries made Full Year donations of £38.000 112019
and £44.000 in 2018) to its charitable partner, Plan International, which strives to advance children’s rights and equality tor girls
all over the world. The Group's partnership with Plan International, known as “Building l'utures’ invests in cducational
infrastructure projeets i developing countries, and aligns with its mission to educate students trom every corner of the plobe.

Continung the parinership’s history, the donation made n the vear was utihsed 1o fund a project n the Kungram distriet of
Bangladesh. The project aim is to provide access to safer education to 1,080 girls. 1,320 bovs and 128 teaching and education
staff through the rehabilitation of eight schools in the distriet. Starting in July 2018 the two-vear project aims to raise a total of
£200.000 from donations from stall and students. and mateh funding from Study Group. This target is on track to be achieved
by March 2020,

Going Concern

The finaneial statements have been prepared on a gomg concern basis, with strong net assets of £3006.7 million. The impact that
Covid-19 has had on the business and consequently on the Directors™ going coneern assessment 1s detailed in the Strategic Report
on page 6. Whilst there s considered to be a material uncertainly which may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going coneerii due to a forecast financial covenant breach as outlined on page 6, the Directors consider that any
financial covenant breach in the next 12 months from the date of these financial statements is highly unlikely due to an agreement
reached with the Group™s lenders that includes ihe setting, aside of this covenant lor a period that extends bevond the next 12
months, subject to final legal documentation. The [irectors therefore continue to adopt the going concern basis in the financial
statements and have concluded that thev have a reasonable expectation that the Company and Group will have adequate resources
Lo continue in operational existence for the foresceable future

Events after the Balance Sheet Date

Events between the balance sheet date and the date the tinancial statements were issued are disclosed in Note 30 ol the
consehidated financial statements and Note 8 of the parent company {nancial statements. The impaet that Covid-19 has had on
the business and consequently on the Directors™ going concem assessment is detailed in the Strategic Report on page .

Disclosure of Information to Auditor
Euch of the persons whe 1s a [Director at the date of approval ot this annual report contirms that:
+  so tar as the Director 1s awarc, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditor 1s unaware: and
»  the Dircctor has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have laken as a 1 1rector in order to make himsclt/herself aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditor is aware ol that information.

‘This confirmation is given and should be mterpreted in accordance with the provisions ol 5418 of the Companies Act 2006.

N Williams
Directar
11 December 2020

13



SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED
DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT

The Dircetors include the tollowing individuals, being a balance of exceutive Directors and non-executive Directors:

Emma Lancaster

Chief Executive Officer,

Sty Group

I:mma Lancaster was appointed Chiet’ Lxecutve Officer of Study Group m September 2018, having served as Chiel Financial
Officer since Apnl 2013,

Ms Lancaster was CFO of STIL Cireup Ltd for 11 vears. during which time 1t was both a public company listed on the London
Stock [xchange and private equity backed. Prior to SIIL. she was Director of Iinance and Business Development at The Rank
Group ple. Ms Lancaster’s early career was at Arthur Andersen in a variety of both client-facing and internal roles in the Glohal
Corporate Finance group.

Ms Laneaster has a BA (1ons) in Zoology from Oxtord University.

Nick Williams

Chief Financial Officer

Study Group

Nick joined Study Group m October 2018 as Chiet Financial Officer and was appointed to the Board on the same day.

Nick began his finance career at KPMG, and prior to joining Study Group was (inance leader for a number of growing,
international businesscs. Most recently he was CFO of JucTravel. a global B213 travel provider. Previous businesses included
Masternaut. Truflo International and Biocompatibles. Nick alse serves as Non-Fxcewtive Director of Cambridge Scientitic
Innovations.

IIc has a BA (lons) in History trom the University of Txeter. and 1s a Feilow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales.

Professor Sir Keith Burnett FRS

Vice-{Chatr { Academic)

Sty Growp

Professor Sir Keith Burnett FRS 1s an eminent seientist who was formerdy the Head ol the Iivision of Mathematical, Physical
and Lile Sciences at The University of Oxlord. e also worked as a physicist in the United States and at Imperial College m
london before spending two decades at Oxtord and then 11 years as the President and Vice-Chancellor of The University of
Sheltield.

In addition to his role with Study Group. 8ir Keith 1s Chair of the Nullield Foundation - the charitable trust established in 1943
T.ord Nuftield, the founder of Morris Motors. which aims to improve social well-being by funding research and innovation
prujects in education and social policy, and building research capacily in seience and social science. He 1s also the Chair of the
Academue Couneil of the Schmidt Seience Fellows in partnership with the Rhodes Trust in Oxford, a global programme 10
supporl exemplary interdiseiplinary scienee in parinership with the world's leading universities. e has served as President of
the UK. Science Council, as a trustee of the Roval Society and as a member of the Prime-Minister s Advisory Council on
Science and Technology

A speaketr of Mandarin Chinese, Sir Keith has also been a sigmificant leader of scientitic and educational partnership between
the UK and China. In 2014 and 2016 he was given an Awurd for Outstanding Personal Achiexement by the People’s Republie
of China for his contribution to the understanding of Chinese language and culture. Sir Keith was the co-founder of the award-
winning #WeArelnternational campaign which weleomes international students and scholars to the UK. now supported by over
100 UK uymversitics. cducation providers and businesses and led by the UK. Council for International Student Affairs He was
awarded a knighthood in 2013 [or serviees to Scicnce and Higher Education.

Ralph Kugler

Non-kExecutive Chairman

Ralph lras worked on a number ol private equity deals. in a number ol different sectors. He currently chairs Williams [Lea Tag,
an Advent International investment, and 1s Independent Director of Keter, a BC Partners investment He also chairs an exciting
eurly stage business. Headbox.

Ralph has been invelved in a number of education activities in recent vears. Ie is Board Trustee on the largest primany schooi
MAT. I1e was chair of the Advisory board of a leading University business school. recently stepping down alter 10 vears on the
board. Until 2018, he was Chairman of Cognita. the global K12 schools organisation. with over 70 schools worldwide.

Ralph spent 25 years at Unilever, and has lived and worked in § Africa. Bravil, Malaysia, Thatland and Belgmm. as well as the

UK. He rose to become executive Director on the main board ol Unilever. 11e has also been a Director of [ntercontinental ilotels.
and was Toard advisor on the main board of Mars. [ncorporated.

14



SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED
DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT

Ralph was appointed Commander of the Royval Order of the Direkgunabom. a That roval honour. in 1999

Olivier Personnaz

Arelian

Olivier 15 a Managing Director based in the [ondon office at Ardian. Prior to joinmg Ardian in 2011 he was a Principal at
Apax Pariners in the business and financral services team. Previously, Mr. Personnar worked in Paris as a management
consultant with McKimsey & Company. 1le graduated as an Engineer {rom Eeole Centrale Parts. Currently sits on the board of
DIRT and SFAM.

Bruno Ladriére

Ardian

Bruno has been a Managing Thrector with Ardian since 2002, He was previouslv a Director at PAI Partners. He has extensine
mvestment experience n the food. chemicals, industrials and healtheare sectors. Bruno has worked in the pharmaceutical
mdustry with Rhone-Poulene, in management consulting with Corperate Decisions and m investment banking with Triago. 1e
qualified as a Medieal Doctor and received an MBA from The Wharton School. Currently sits on the board of Envision Pharma
Ciroup. Inula, DRT and Selma.

Edward Little

Ardian

Iidward Little is based m the Lendon otfice of Ardian. Prior to joining Ardian in 2018, Mr. Little worked at TPG Capital where
he foeused on the consumer and business seryices scetors. Previously. Mr. Latle worked at HIG Capital and began his career as
an investment banker at Rothschild in Londen. Mr. Little 1s a graduate of the London School of Eeonomics.

Benjamin Witcher

Ardian

Bewamin Witcher joined Ardian in 2013 within Ardian's Buvout team in London. Prior o joining Ardian, he spent two vears m
the Leveraged Finance & Sponsors Group at Credit Suisse.

Michael Van Cauwenberge
Ardian
Michael Van Cauwenberge joined Ardran in 2019 as an Analvst within the Buvout Team in London.

The Global Executive Team

The GET is responsible for the day to day management of the Group's affairs 1t is led by the Group's CEO. fimima Lancaster.
All members of the team have extensive experiencee in. and m-depth knowledge of, the education sector or the function that they
fcad. The current inembers of the GET and roles are as tollows:

Frmna Lancaster. Chiet Fxecutive Officer

Nick Williams. Chief Financial Officer

Gordon Bull, Chief Legal Officer

Alex Chevrolle. Managing Iirector. AN7.

Anthony Claridge, Chiel Information Officer

Mike Everett, Global Delivery Director, UK & Lurope

Nikki Iall, Chiet People & Transformation Officer

Robert Morgan. Gglobal Chiel Operating Officer

Jarnes Pitman. Managing Director, Development UK & LEurope
Maune} Shetty, Chief Revenue Officer

Dr Mark Cunnington, Exceutive Director, UK & Hurope (appointed 28 Februarv 2020

—
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SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Lhe Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the tinancial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations,

Company law requires the Directors 1o prepare {inancial statements for each financial year. Under that law the Directors have
clected to prepare the group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (1FRSs) as
adopted by the Furopean Union and the parent company financial statements in accordance with Unued Kingdem Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (Unied Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law} including FRS 101 “Reduced
Disclosure Framework™

tnder company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they pive a true and
Fair view of the state of aflairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period.

In preparing the parent company financial statements. the Directors are required to:
»  seleet suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently:
+  make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent:
= state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subjeet o any material departures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements: and
= prepare the {inancial staternents on the going concern basis unless it is mappropniate to presume that the company will
continue in business.

In prepartng the group financial statements. International Accounting Standard 1 requires that Directors:

«  properly select and apply accounting policies:

< present infermation. ineluding accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant. reliable. comparable and
untderstandable intormation:

= provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufTieicnt to enable wsers
to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entitv’s financial position and
[mancial perfoermance: and

*  make an assessment of the company s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Threctors are responsible for keeping adequate aseounting records that are sullicient to show and explain the company s
iransactions and disclose with reasonable aceuracy at any time the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the Compantes Act 2006, They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
company and hence for taking reasonablc steps tor the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Dircctors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the
company s wchsite, Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements mav

ditter from legislation in other jurisdictions.

On behull of the Board of Directors

N Williams
Director
11 December 2020
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5G GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion:

«  the financial staterments of 8G Global Topeo Limited (the “parent company ) and 1ts subsidiaries (the “group’) ginea
true and fair view of the state of the proup’s and of the parent company”s alTairs us at 31 December 2019 and of the
group’s loss for the period then ended:

« the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (JI'RSs) as adopted by the European Union.

e the parenl company {inancial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice, including Financtal Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced 1isclosure Framework ™ and

+  the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial staiements which comprise:
»  the consolidated statement ol comprehensiy e income:
+  the consolidated statement of tinancial position:
«  the consolidated statement of changes i equily:
+  the consolidated cash tlow statementt
+  the relaled notes to the financial statements 1 1o 30
= the parent staternent of Rnancial position:
*  the parent statement of changes in equity: and
«  the related notes to the parent company tinancial statements | to 8.

The financial reporting tramework that has been applied m the preparation of the group financial statcments is applicable luw
and II'R8s as adopted by the Furopean Unjon. The financtal reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the
parent company fmancial stalements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards. ineluding Iinancial
Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework™ (tnited Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audil in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsthilities under those standards ate turther described m the auditor's responsibilities for the audit ot the financial statements
section of our report.

We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the finuncial statements in the UKL ineluding the Fmanelal Reporting Couneil’s (the "FRC ") Ethical Standard, and we
have fulfilled our other cthical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we
have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis {or our opinion.

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to Note 1 in the financial statements. which indicates that the Iirectors have reached an agreement with the
Group's lenders that includes the setting aside of the single financial covenant related 1o the Group’'s term loans Tor a period that
extends bevond the next 12 months, and incorporating a commitiment frem Ardian o provide a capital injeetion of up to €30
it required. If the agreement to set aside the covenant with the lenders had not been reached, a financial covenant breach resulting
mn the facilities bocoming repayable from June 2021 would otherwise have been torceast. [However. the agreement with the
CGroup’s lenders is still subject to final legal documentation at the date of approval of the financial statements. As stated in Note
[. these events or conditions, along with the other matters as set forth in Note 1 1o the financial statements. indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that mayv cast significant doubt on the Group’s and Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our
opinion is not modilied in respect of this malter.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We are required by [SAs (UK) to report in respect of the following matters where:
»  the directors™ use of the going concern basis of accounting, in preparation ol the linaneial statements is not appropriate:
or
+  the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identificd matenal uncertaintics that may cast significant
doubt about the group’s or the parent company s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting tor
a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issuc.

We have nothing to report in respeet of these matters.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, other than the linancial statements and our audifor’s report thereon. Our opimon on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any lorm of
assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements. our responsibility is to read the other information and. in doing so.
consider whether the other information is materially mconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Iff we identfy such material inconsistencies or apparent matcnal
misstatermnents, we are required to determine whether there 1s a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. 1f. based on the work we have performed, we cenclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information. we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing 10 report in respect of these matiers.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fullv in the directors™ responsibilitics statement. the directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statemenis and for bemng satistied that thev give a true and tair view, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary 1o enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from maierial misstatement, whether due to
tfraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible tor assessing the group’s and the parent company s ability to
continue as 4 going concern, disclosing, as applicable. matters related o going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the direetors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent eompany or (o cease operations. or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilitics for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the {inancial statements as a whole are free ftom material
misstatenent. whether due to fraud or error. and te 1ssue an auditor's report that includes our epinion. Reasonable assurance isa
high level ol assurance. but is not 4 guarantee that an audit conducted tn accordance with ISAs (UK will alwavs deteet a material
misstatenient when il exists. Misstalements can anse from fraud or error and are considered material if, mdividually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the econemic decisions of users taken on the basis of these [inancial
slatements.

A turther deseription of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the TRC s websile at:
wuw e ors uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion. based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
»  the imformation given in the strategic report and the direclors™ report for the financial period for which the fmancial
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the [inancial statements: and
«  the strategic report and the directors” report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and of the parent company and their environment obtained in the
course of the audit. we have not identilted any material misstaternents in the strategic report or the directors” report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2000 we are required to report in respect of the (ollowing matters if, in our epinion:
¢+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audil have not been
received from branches not visited by us: or
« the parent company [inancial stalements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
*  certain disclosures of directors” remuneration speeified by law are not madce; or
+ wc have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matlers.

Use of our report

This report is made solely 1o the company's members. as a body. in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company s members those matters we are required
state to them 1n an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitied by law. we do not aceept or assume
responsitility 1o anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body. Yor our audit work, for this report. or
for the opinions we heve lormed.

Helo A d&yﬂdaﬁ

Helen Burridge (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on bchalf of Deloitte LLP, Statutory Auditor, London, United Kingdom
15 December 2020
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SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED

GROUP CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the period ended 31 December 2019
Before  Exceptional

Exceptional And Total

and Other  Other Items

Items (Note 8)

2019
(n g contining aperations hasis:

Note £m £m £fm
Revenue 2 148.6 - 148.6
Sales und marketing costs (39.8) - (39.9)
DPelivery costs (55.8) - (55.8)
Administrative expenscs (30.5) (10.2) (40.7)

EARNINGS BEFORE DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATION,
IMPAIRMENT, NET FINANCING COSTS AND TAXATION 22.5 (10.2) 12.3
FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS:

Impairment 9.1) (0.2) (0.3)
Depreciation and amortisation (23.7) - (23.7)
OPERATING LOSS 3 (1.3) (10.4) (11.h
I'inance income 4 0.3 - 0.3
Finance costs 5 (14.4) (0.7 (15.1)
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (15.4) (1L.1) (26.5)
Taxation 6 4.0 - 4.0
L0OSS FOR THE PERIOD AFTER TAXATION FROM 1.4 1.1 25
CONTINUING OPERATIONS at-h (aLy @23
{iscontinued operations: 7
ILuss after tax fur the peried from
discemtinued operations, net of tax (1.8) (0-6) 24
LOSS FOR THE PERIOD AFTER TAXATION (13.2) (11.7 (249
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)
Other comprehensive income te be reclassified to profit or loss in
subseguent periods rnet of tax):
txchange dilterences on translation of {oreign operations (4.2) - (4.2)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD, NET OF

(4.2) - (4.2)
TAX
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD (17.9 (17 (29.1)

The accompanving notes form an mntegral part of these fimancial statements
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SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED

GROUP CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 December 2019

31 December 2019

Note im
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSLETS
Goodwill 9 287.7
Other intangible assets 10 408.6
Property. plant and equipment il 26.1
Right-of-use assets 12 117.4
[nterests in joint ventures 13 0.3
Finanee lease receivables I4 4.7
Deferred tux assets 13 20.1
Other financial assets 0.1
865.0
CURRENT ASSEETS
Finance lease receivables 14 0.8
Current tax assets .3
Trade and other receivables 16 58.1
Cash and cash equivalents 44.0
103.2
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other pavables 17 80.0
Unearned revenues 18 113.0
Current tax habilities 3.2
[.case labilities 19 16.2
Provisions 20 4.8
217.2
NET CURRENT LIABILITILS (114.00
NON-CURRENT LIABHLITIES
Borrowings 21 221.5
Deterred tax liabilities 15 104.4
Provisions 20 5.2
Leasc habilities 19 113.2
444.3
NET ASSETS 306.7
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT
Share capital 23 334.8
Share premium reserve 23 1.0
Translation rescrve (4.2}
Accumulated losses (249
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS® FUNDS 306.7

The financial statements and notes on pages 19 1o 58 were approved by the Board of direclors on 11 December 2020 and were
signed on its behall by N. Williams. The accompanying notes lorme an integral part of these financial stalements.

N. Williams, Divector, SG Global Topeo Limited, Registered no. 11827427
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SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED

GROUP CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the period ended 31 December 2019

2019

Opening balance on incorporation

L.oss for the period

(her comprehensive income tor the period
‘lTotal comprehensive gain/(loss) for the period

[ssug ol share capiial

Balance at 31 December 2019

21

Note

23

Ordinary Share  Translation Accumulated Total
Share Premium Reserve Losses Equity
C'apital Reserve

£m £m £m £m

£m

- - - 24.9) 249

_ ; (4.2) - (4.2)

- - (4.2) 24.9) 29.1)

334.8 1.0 - - 335.8

334.8 1.0 +.2) (24.9) 306.7




SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED

GROUP CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the period ended 31 December 2019

The Group has elected Lo present a staterment ol cash tlows that analvses all cash flows in total, meluding both continuing and

discontinued operations: amounts relating to discontinued operations are disclosed in Note 7.

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss belore tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisalion

Impairment of right of use assets

Impuinnent of intangtble assets

Finance costs

Finance income

LL.oss on disposal of discontinued operations

Acquisilion costs

Decrease in trade and other reeeivables
Diecrease in uncarned revenues
Decrease in provisions

Decrease in trade and other pavables

Acquisition cosls

interest paid and linaneing costs
Interest element of lease payments
[neome taxes pard

Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH F1LLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest recerved

Intcrest income on the net investunent in the leasce
Purchase of bustesses

Cash balances acguired on acquisition

Purchase of preperty, plant and equipment

Purchase of intangible asscts

Net cash used in mvesting activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
PProceeds on 1ssue of shares

Proceeds frem issue of loans

Deterred borrowing costs on new loans

Repavment of bank loans and other financing
Repavment of the principal portion of the net investment in the lease
Repavment of the principal portion of the lease liability

Net cash generated [Tom tinancing activitics

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Effcet of foreign exchange rate changes
CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

22

Note

~1

29

29
29
11

23

28

2019
£m

(28.9

237
0.
0.1
144
0.3
0.6
6.0
15.5
607
(9 4y
(0.6
(14.3)
51.7
(6.0
(3.4}
(3.0
(0.2)

371

0.1

02
(287.3)
.2
(6.8)
(3.7)
(291.3)

335.8
2328
(7.7
{252.5)
0.5
(10.8)
2981

437
0.3
44.0



SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1.1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Date of incorporation

SG Global Topeo Limited (formerdy Surrey Topeo Limited) was mecorporated on 14 February 2019 1t is a company limited by
shares and s incorporated, domiciled and registered in lingland and Wales. The company name was changed trom Surreyv Topeo
Limited to 5G Global Tepeo Limited on 29 May 2019, The Group consolidated tinuncial statements were authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors on 11 December 2020,

lFor the period ending 31 December 2019 the following subsidiartes of the Company were entitled to exemption {rom audit under
s47YA ol the Companies Act 2006 relating to subsidiary companies:

Subsidiary Name Companies House Registration Number
EDU UK Intermediate 1td 07285215
EDU UK Management Services Lid 07285370
EDU UK Topeo 1ad 7283288
Study Group [Hoeldings UK Ltd 03888001
Beilerbys UK 1id (formerly Study Group Lid) 04275123
Study Group Distance Learning Lid 07145404
SG Global B3ideo Lid 11827693
S Global Mideo L 11827648
SG Global Tineo Tid [1827369

Accounting policies for the period ended 31 December 2019
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these tinancial statements are set out below. These policics have
been consistently applied throughout the period. unless otherwise stated.

1.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These Imancial statements are based on the consolidated results of the 8G Global Topeo Limited Group (“the Group™) for the
period 1o 31 December 2019, The parent entity was incorporated on 14 February 2019 and the acqussition of the trading group
oceurred on 31 May 2019. thus the results reflect 7 months of trade.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the Luropean Union (IFRSs as adopied by the EUDY, and the Companics Act 2006 applicable 1o
companies reporting under IFRS and [FRIC interpretations. This 1s the [irst set of lnancial statements for the Company. The
Compamn has elected 1o prepare its parent company nancial statements in accordance with FRS 101: these are presented on
pages 39 o 63,

The consohdated finaneial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, exeept for financial assets and
financial labilities (ineluding derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with [FRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. [t also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s aceounting policics. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and cstimates are significant to the conselidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 1.23.

Going Concern

At 31 October 2020 the Group had cash and cash cquivalents of £29.8m. Alter consideration of the impaet of Covid-19 on the
buginess as discussed below, ineluding the application of scenario and sensitivity analvsis, and the ongoing support of the
Giroup's majority sharcholder Ardian, there is positive cash headroom on committed facilitics throughout the going concemn
assessment period. This includes a commitment from Ardian Lo provide a caprial injection of up to £30m il required, as part of
an agreement that has been reached with the Group's lenders. That agreement is subject to legal documentation, which 1s
currently in the process of betng finalised.

In making the going concern assessment. the Iirectors have taken into account the ongoing impact of Covid-19 on the Group.
The Drrectors have prepared a series of trading performance forecasts in terms of the impact of the pandemic on the business.
The going coneern assessment recognises the inherent uncertainty associated with any forecasting and the Directors believe that
the CGrroup’s streng [inancial and market position, together with its proactive management of evolving market conditions
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SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

including closely managing cosls and ensurmg that liquidity 1s maintamed with sulticient headroom, will ensure that the Group
will manage through the situation and will emerge strongly.

[n an illustrative extreme downside scenario [or the purposes ol stress-testing the Group’s strong financial position. NSIY for the
first six month of 2021 could be over 30% lower than the same period in 2020, and NSE for the second six months of 2021 no
better than the comparable period i 2020 which was impacted by Covid-19 before cash rescurces would reach sero. Based on
current evidence available to the Directors at the date of this report. the assumptions in this scenario are considered to be highly
uniikely. Therefore, under all reasonable downside seenarios modelied. and assuming the fmalisation of the agreement with the
Group's lenders as reterenced above. the group has sullicient committed facilities.

The Group’s term loan currently includes a single financial covenant requiring that the Group’s leverage ratio remains within
agreed limits, with which the Group was i complianece throughout the vear and since the vear end. The agreement that has been
reached with the Group’s lenders includes the setting aside of this covenant for a period that extends bevond the next 12 months,
subject to final legal documentation, and ineorporating the commitment from Ardian to provide a capital injection of up to £30m
W required. As a resull of g reduction in NSE in the second six months of 2020, as outlined in more detai! in the section above.
the “last 12 months EBITDA” used in the covenant caloulation during the going concern asscssment period is expecled to be
materially lower than it would have been before Covid-19. If the agreement to set aside the covenant had not been reached with
the lenders. a financial covenant breach resulting in the facilities becoming repayvable from Junc 2021 would otherwise have
been forecast.

(iven the above, the Board is conlident that the Company and the Group will have adequate resources to continue to operate tor
the foreseeable future. Because the agreement with the Group™s lenders remains subjeet (o [inal legal documentation at the date
ol appronal of these financial statermnents. the Directors have concluded that these vircumstances represent a material uneerlainty
which may cast significant doubt on the Company 's and the (iroup s ability to continue as a going coneern and realise ils assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business, However. because the Directors consider that any [inancial covenant
breach in the next 12 months from the date of these [inancial statements 1s highly unlikely due to the agreement reached. and
that the Company and the Group will have adequate resources to continue in operational existence tor the foresecable future.
they continue to adopt the going concern basis in the [inancial statements.

1.3  BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, vartable
returns from its imvolvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those retumns through its power over the entity. In
assessing control, the Group takes into consideration polential voting rights that are currently exercisable. The acquisition date
1s the date on which control is transterred to the sequirer. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated
finaneial statements {rom the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. All intra-group transactions,
balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Joint Arrangements
A joint arrangement is an arrangemeni over which the Group and one or more third partics have joint control. These joint
arrangements are in turn classified as:
* Joint ventures whereby the Group has rights to the net assets of the arrangement. rather than rights o its assets and
obligations for its liabilities. and
= Joint operations whereby the Group has rights to the assets and obligations for the Habilities relating to the arrangement.

Application of the equity method to joint ventures

Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method (equity aceounled investees) and are initially recognised at cost. The
Ciroup’s investment includes goodwill 1dentified on acquisition. net of anv accumulated mmpairment losses. The consolidated
tinancial statements include the Group’s share of the total comprehensive income and equity movernents of equity accounted
investees. from the date that joint contrel commences until the date that joint control ceases. When the Group's share of losses
exceeds its interest in an cquity accounted invesice. the Group’s carrving amount is reduced 1o nil and recognilion of further
losses 1s discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred lepal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behall ol an investee.
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SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
14 REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable lor the sale of services in the ordinary course of the
Ciroup's uctivities. Revenue s shown net of sales taxes and discounts.

Revenue is recognised as follows, in aceordance with the principles of IFRS 13

a) Tuition revenue

Tuitien revenue 18 generated from education courses provided to students and 1s recognised over tme as the courses
are provided, with performance obligations being satisfied as the course 1s delivered. Discounts and bursaries given to
students are netted against 1uilion revenue. Pavments from students are due in aceordanee with agreed paviment terms
for that particular course and education provider. Pre-pavments lor courses are treated as deferred revenue and
amottised over the duration ot the course. Refunds will be granted to students in accordance with the agreed refund
policies for each University partner, for example inexeeptional circumstances such as relating to illness or bereayement.
or where Study Group has been unable Lo provide or complete teaching of a paid-for programme of study.

bl  Accommodation revenue
Accommeodation revenue is generaled from accommodation provided to students and s recognised over time as it 1s
provided. Pavments from students are due in accordance with agreed payment terms for the accommodation provided
Pre-payments for accommodation are treated as deferred revenue and amortised over the duration of stay. Refunds will
be granted to students in accordance with the agreed refund policies lor cach University partner, for example 1z
exceptional cirewastances such as relating to illness or bereavement. or where Study Group has been unable 0 provide
or complete teaching of a pard-for programme of studv.

¢)  Matriculation or placement revenue
Matriculation or placement revenue from University Partners is recognised when the Giroup’s performance obligations
are met. which is the point at which matriculation or placement of the student is confirmed. The revenue is recognised
tfor all semesters and vears. with an estimate ol subsequent vear amounts being made by taking into account average
progression rates. Payment 1s due in accordance with agreed payvment terms with that particular University . Study
Giroup is entitled to payviment once the student enrols on their course. and there is no obligation for a refund should the
stirdent tail o complete the course.

dy Other revenue
Other revenue is recognised in line with IFRS 15 and when the perlormance obligations have been met.

1.5 STUDENT ACQUISITION COSTS

Commission and bonuses paid o third party agents. where the Group has a right to ¢law back the pavments in the event the
student Jcaves before completion of their course, are deterred on the balance sheet and recognised over the same period as the
related student revenue. Pavments made where the Group has no recourse to claw them back are expensed as they are eamed by
the third part .

1.6 LEASES

The Group as lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract 1s or contams a lease. at inception of the contract. The Group recognises a nght-ol-use
assel and o corresponding lease habilitv with respeet to all lease arrangements in which 1t is the lessee, except for shori-term
leases (delined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets (such as laptops, photocopicers,
small items of office fumniture and telephenes). Tor these leases, the Group recognises (he lease pavments as an operating expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which ceconomic benefits [rom the leased assels are consumed.

The lease Hability is initially measured at the present value of the lease pavments that are not paid at the commencement date.
discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If thus rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses its ineremental
borrowing rate.



SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Lease pavments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:
+  Fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed pavments), less any lease incentives receivable:
«  Variable lease pavments that depend om an index ot rate, initially measured using the mndex or rate at the commencement
date.
= The amount expected to be pavabic by the lessce under residual value guarantees:
»  The exercise price ol purchase options, 1l the lessee 1s reasonably certain to exercise the options: and
. Payments of penalties lor terminating the lease, it the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease.

The lease liability 15 presented as a separate line m the consolidated statement of linancial position.

The lease hiabiluty is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to retlect nterest on the lease hability (using the
effective interest methed) and by reducing the carrving amount to reflect the lease payments made.

The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

»  The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulung in a change 1 the
assessment of exereise of a purchase option. in which case the lease liability 1s remeasured by discounting the revised
lease pavments using a revised discount rate.

»  The leasc payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected pavment under a guaranteed
restdual value. in which cases the lease Nability s remeasured by discounting the tevised lease paviments using an
unchanged discount rate (anless the lease pavments change 1s due to a change in a floating interest rate, m which casc
a revised discount rate s used).

+ A lease contract 1s modHied and the lcase modification 1s not accounted for as a separate lease. in which case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the moditied lease by discounting the revised Iease payments using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the modilication.

The right-ol-use asscls comprise the mitial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or belore
the commencement day, less any leasc incentives received and any imitiat direet costs. They are subsequently measured at cost
less aecumulated depreciation and impairment losses. At the end of each reporting period. the Group assesses whether there 1s
any mdication that a right-of-use asset may be impatred under [IAS 306, I there 1s an indication of mmpairment. the asset will be
written down Lo its recoverable amount.

Whenever the Group ineurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remon ¢ a leased asset. restore the sile on whech it is located
or restere the underlyving asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease. a proviston 1s recognised and
measured under [AS 37. To the extent that the costs relale to a right-of-use asset. the costs are included m the related right-of-
use assel. unless (hose costs are incurred 1o produce insentories.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlyving asset, 1 a lease transfers
ownership of the underlving asset or the cost of the right-ot-use asset rellects thal the Group expects 1o exercise a purchase
opuon. the related right-ot-use asset 1s deprectated on a straight-line basis over the uselul lite of the underlying asset. The
depreciation starts at the commencement date of the leasc.

The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in the consolidated statement of [inancial posilion.

The Group applies IAS 36 1o determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any 1dentificd nmpairment loss
as desertbed in the “Property, Plant and Equipment” poliey.

Variable rents that do not depend on an index er rate are not included in the measurermnent the lease liability and the night-of-use
asset. The related pavments are recognised as an expense in the period in which the cvent or condition that triggers those

pavments ocewrs and are included in the line ~Other operating expenses™ in profit or joss,

As a praclical expedient, [FRS 16 permits a lessce not to separate non-lease components. and nstead account for any lease and
ussociated non-leasc components as a single arrangement. The Group has clected to apply this 1o lcases of student
accommoedation and motor vehicles only. For contracts that contain a lease component and one or more additional lease or non-
lease components. the Group allocales the consideration in the contract to cach lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and the apprepate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.
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S$G GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

The Group as lessor

I.cases for which the Group is a lessor are classitied as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. the contract 1s elassified as a finance lease. All other leases are
classified as operating leases,

When the (itoup is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the head lease and (he sub-lease as two scparate contracts. The sub-
lease 1s classitied as a linance or operating lease by reference o the right-of-use asset arising rom the head lease

Rental income {Tom operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. [nitial direct cosls
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating leasce are added o the carrving amount of the leased asset and recognised on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Amounts due [rom lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group's net investment in
the leases. I'inance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to rellect a constant periodic rate of return on the
(troup’s nel investment outstanding n respect of the leases.

1.7 EXCEPTIONAL AND OTHER ITEMS

Due to their material nature, certain exeeptional and other non-trading or non—recurring items have been classified separately in
order to aid the understanding of the reader. Lixceptional tems comprise. inter alia. iinpairment charges. restructuring costs and
costs associated with material financing or acquisition transactions. Other items include strategic iny estments which comprise
of uplront investments for the benelit of future years. non-exccutive director lees, restructuring costs and unrealized X Toss that
the directors believe are beneficial to strip out when analvsing the underlyving trading resubt for the peried because these are
items that are not direetly linked to the trading business

1.8 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Acquisitions of businesses arc accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combinatton is measured at fair value. which is caleulated as the sum of the acquisilion-date fair values of assets transterred by
the Group. liabtlities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquirce and the equity interest issued by the Group in
exchange tor control of the acquiree. Acquisition-refated costs are reeognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the aequisition date, the identiliable assets acquired and the labilitics assumed are recognised at their lair value at the
acquisition date, exeept that:
+ deferred tux assets or liabilities and assets or labilities related o employee benelit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with IAS 12 and [AS 19 respectively:

Cioodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transterred over the net of the acquisition -date amounts of
the identifiable assets acquired and the Habilities assumed. If. after reassessment. the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
wdentillable assets acquired and liabilitics assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transierred. the excess 1s recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combimation includes a contingent consideration arrangement.
the contingent consideration 1s measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in
a busmess combination. Changes in Tair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospeetively, with corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments
thal arise trom additional information obtained during the “measurement period’ (which cannot exceed one vear from the
acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not quahify as measurement
peried adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classiticd. Contingent consideration that 1s classificd as
equily is not re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent scttlement is accounted for within equity. Other
contingent consideration is re-measured to fair vajue at subsequent reporting dates with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss.

I the initial accounting for a business combination s incomplete by the end ol the reporung period in which the combinatien
oceurs, the Group reperts provisional amounts [or the items tor which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional
amounts ar¢ adjusted during the measurement period (see above). or additional assets or liabilities are recognised. to reflect
new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that. if known. would have
aflected the amounts recognised as of that date.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

1.9 GOODWILL

O acquisition of a business. fair values ure attributed to the identifiable assets and liabilities and contingent liabilities untess
the fair value cannot be measured reliably, in which case the value 1s subsumed nto goodwill. Where fair values of acquired
contingent labilitics cannot be measured reliably | the assumed contingent liability is not recognised bul is disclosed in the same
manner as other c()ntingcnl liabilities.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less accurnulated impairment losses. Impaimment losses on
goodwill are not reversed. Goodwill 1s allocated to CGU's for the purpose of impatrment testing. with CGU's in line with the
reported operating scgments. The allocation 15 made to those CGU™s or Groups of CGU's that are expected to benefit from the
business combmation in which the goodwill arose identified according to operating segment. Goodwill is recorded in the
functiona! curreney of the CGU to which it relates.

1.16  INTANGIBLES

Intangible assets acquired scparately

Intangible assets acquired separately are recorded at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment Josses.
Amortisation is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful hife and amortisatton method 15 reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with any changes in
these accounling éstimates being accounted for on a prospectlive basts,

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired m a business combination are wWentitied and recognised separatcly from goodwill where they satisty
the defimtion of an intangiblke asset and their fair values can be measured reliably. Intangible asscts acquired in a business
combiation are recorded m the functional currency of the CGU to which they relate. Subsequent to 1nitial recognition at lair
value, intangible assets acquired in a business combination are reperted at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses at the balance sheet exchange rate. on the same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.

The fullowing useful lives have been determined for the intangible assets acquired separately or in a business combination:

University Partnerships 30 vears

Brand 30 vears
Soltware 3-5 vcars
Centre Contraets Life of contract
Course Development 3 vears

Internally-generated intangible assets
An internally -gencrated intangible asset arising Itom soltware and ¢ourse development is recognised il and only it all of the
following have been demenstrated.

»  the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale:

= the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it

= the ability to use or sell the intangible assct:

*  how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benelits:

+  the availability of adequate teehnical. {inancial and other resources o complete the development and to use or sell the
Intangible asset: and

= the ability 0 measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its developiment.

The amount initially recognised for internally -generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred tfrom the date
when the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above,

Subsequent Lo nitial recognition, internally -generated intangible assets are reported at eost less accumulated amortisation and
accurmnulated impatrment losses. on the same basts as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

The fotlowing useful lives have been determined for internally generated intangible assets:

Course Development 3 vears
Sottware Development -3 years

2
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1. SIGNIFTCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
1.11 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Iixed assets are shown at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes the original
purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable to brninging the asset to 115 working condition lor its intended use.

Repairs and maintenance are expensed as ineurred, while major renosations and improvements are capitalised as [ixed assets
and depreciated over their estimated useful hives.

Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to wrile off the cost or valuation of cach asset. on a straight-line busis over its
expected useful life to their residual values. as follows:

Irechold buildings - 30 vears
Fquipment - 2-10 vears
i.easchold improvements - Term of lease
Asset Retirenient obligations - Term of lease

IFreehold tand is not depreciated.
1.12 IMPATIRMENT OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwiil, are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrving value may not be recoverable, An mmpairment loss 1s recognised for the amount by which the asset's
carryving value exceeds its recoverable amount, which 1s considered to be the higher of valuc in use and lair value less costs Lo
sell. In order 1o assess impairment, asscts are grouped into the lowest les els for which there are separately identitfiable cash [Tows
{cash-generating units). Cash {lows used to assess impairment are discounted using appropriate rates taking into account the cost
of capital and anv risks relevant o those assets.

1.13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments
I'mancial assets and Unancial liabilities are recognised in the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the mstrument.

Financial assets

All lnancial assels are normally recognised and de-recognised on a trade date basis where the purchase or sale of a financial
asset 15 under a contract whose terms require delivery of the [nancial asset within the timeframe established by the markel
coneerned and are mitially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs. except for those tinancial assets classilied as at fair
value through profit and loss, which ure initially measured at fair value. On de-reeognition, however. where a specifie transaction
15 entered into with a counterparty that 1s judged to carry a high credit or Hiquidity risk. then the Directors mav delermine that
de-recopnition of the financial assct shall be based on settlement date rather than trade date, with anv realised gain or loss taken
to the ncome stetement on date of settlement.

Financial assets that arc within the scope of IFRS 9 are required to be classitied and measured subsequently at amortised cost.
{uir value threugh other comprehensive income (CFVTOCE) or fair value through protit and loss ("FVTPL ™) on the basis of the
Group’s busimess model for managing the tinancial assets and the contractual cash flow charactertstics of the linancial asscts.

Specifically:

*  debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective 1s to collect the contractual cash flows, and that
have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,, are
measured subsequently al amortised cost:

+  debtinstruments that are held within a business model whose objective is both to collect the contractual cash flows and
1o sell the debt instruments, and that have contractual cash [lows that are solely pavments of principal and interest on
the prineipal amount outstanding, are measured subsequently at FVTOCT: and

»  all other debt invesiments and equity investments are measured subseqguently at FVTPLL

Despite the foregoing, the Group may make the following irrevocable clection/designation at initial recognition ol a financial
assct:
*  the Group may irrevocably designate a debt investment that meets the amortised cost or FVTOCT eriteria as measured
at I'VTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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Effective interest method

The effective mterest method 15 a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating mterest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactiy discounts estimated future cash receipts (including alt
fees and amounts paid or recetved that form an integral part of the effectrve mterest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument. or. where appropriate. a shorter period, to the net carrs Ing amount
on initial recognition.

[ncome 1s recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those [inancial assets classitied as at FVTPL.

Classes of financial asset
Financial assets at amortised cost

The Group classifies its linanecial assets as at amortised cost only 1 both of the fotlowing criteria are met
»  the assetis held within a business model whose objective is to colleet the contractual cash flows. and
+  the contractual terms give rise o cash flows that are solely pavments ol principal and interest.

Trade and other receivables that have fixed or determinable pavments that are not gquoted in an active market are classitied at
amortised cost. Trade and other receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except [or short-term receivables when the
recogmition of nterest would be immaterial.

Financial assets at F17TOCT

Financial assets at FVIOCT are stated at Lair value. with anv gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Financial assets af F1TPIL

Tmancial asscis at FVTPL are stated at fair value. with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recogntsed in the income
statement. The net pain or loss recognised in the income statement incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the Nnancial
asscl and 1s included in the “other gains and losses™ line ttem in the income statement.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPLL, are assessed for indicators of impainnent at cach balance sheet date. In accordance
with II'RS 9 impairment of tinancial assets is based on an expected eredit loss ((ECL™) model. The ECE model requires the
Group 1o account for 1:CLs and changes in those ECl.s at each reporling dale to reflect changes in credit risk since inttial
recognition of the financial assets. Financial assets are impaired where there 1s objective evidence that. as a result of one or more
events that wecurred atter the inttial recognition of the financial asset. the estimated future cash flows of the investment have
been aftected, IFRS 9 also requires current and future events 1o be considered when making an impairment assessment.

I'RS 9 requires the Group to measure the loss atllowance for a financial mstrument st an amount cqual to the lifetime ECLs 1
the eredit risk on that linancial mstrument has increased stignificantly since initial recognition, or if the tinanctal instrument is a
purchased or originated credit impaired financial assct.

However, 1f the eredit risk on a linaneial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition (except for a
purchased or originated credit impaired financial asset). the Group 1s required 1o measure the loss allowance for that tinancial
mstrument at an amount equal to 12 months ECL. iFRS 9 alse requires a simplitied approach for measuring the loss allowance
at an amount equal to Hfetime ECL for trade receivables. contract assets and lease receivables in certain circumstances.

For all financial assets, including finance lease reccivables, objective evidence of impatrment could inelude:
«  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty: or
+  delault or delingueney in interest or prinetpal payments: or
* it beeoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or [inancial reorganisation.

For certain categorics of financial assct. such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition. assessed for impairment on a collective basts. Objective evidence of impairment for a porifolio of recervables could
melude the Group’s past experienee of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delaved payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period. as well as observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

For financial assets carried al amortised cost. the amount of the impairment is the differcnee between the asset’s carryving amount
and the present value of estimated future cash 1lows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrving amount of the financial asset 1s reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the excepuion
of trade receivables, where the carrving amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a rade reccivable is
considered uncollectible. 1t is written oft against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously wrilien
off are credited against the aliowance account. Changes in the carrving amount of the allowance account are recognised 1n the
staterment of comprehensive income.

De-recognition of financial assets

The Group de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash [Tows from the asset expire. or when it
transters the financial asset and substantially all the nisks and revwards of ownership of the asset to another entity [f the Group
neither ransters nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards ol ownership and continues to control the transferred asset,
the (iroup recognises its relained nterest in the asset and an associated lability for amounts it mayv have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the nisks and rewards of ownership of a transterred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
tnancial asset and also recognises a coliateralised borrowing for the proceeds recetved.

When a debt investment measured at FVTOCT 15 derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive meome 18 reclassified from equity to prolit or loss as a reclassitication adjustment. When an equity investment
designated as measured at FVTOXC] is derecognised. the cumulative pain or foss previously recognised in other comprehensive
meome 1s subsequently transterred 1o retained camings.

Financial liabilities and equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as cither financial liabilitics or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement

Equity instruments
An equity instrument 1s any contract that exvidences a residual interest in the assets ol an entity afler deducting all of 1ts habiliues.
Liguity instruments tssuced by e Group are recognised at the procceds received, net of direct issue cosls.

Financial liabilitics
I'inancial liabilities are classified as either ~financial labilitics at FVTPL ™ or “other [inancial Labilities™.

Financial guarantee contract liabilitics
Iinancial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at theiwr fair values and, i not designated as at FVTPLL, are
subsequently measured at the higher of:
= the amount of the obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions. Contingent
[iabilities and Contingent Assets: and
+  the amount intially recognised less. where appropriate. cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the
revenue recognition policies set out above

Financial liahilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities arc classified as at FVTPL. when the linancial lability s either held for trading or it is designated as at
FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classitied as held for trading it
= 1t has been incurred prineipally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near terin: or
*  onnilial recognition it 1s part of a portfolio of identifiecd financial instruments that the Group manages together and

has a recent actual pattern ol short-term profit-taking; or

* it1s a derivative that 1s oot designated and effective as u hedging instrument.

A tinancial liability other than a (inancial liabtlity heid for trading may be designated as al FVTPL upon initial recognilton if*

+  such designation eliminates ot significantly reduces a measurcment or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise
arise. or

+  the financial Habilitv forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liablitics or both. which is managed and its
performance 1s cvaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group's documented risk management or
investment strategy and information about the grouping is provided internatly on that basis: or

» it forms part ol a contract conlaining one or more embedded derivatives and ITFRS 9 Financial Instruments permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'DY)

Financial labihies at 'V IPL are stated at tair value. with any gains or losses arising on re-measurcment recognised in the
income statement. The net gain or loss recognised 1 the income statement incorporates any mierest paid on the financial liabihity
and 1s included in the “other gains and losses™ hne item o the statement of comprehensmve income.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial fiabilities. including borrowings. are mitially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. Other Financial
Habilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the cffective interest method. with interest expense recognised on
an cffective vield basis,

The effective interest method s a method of caleulating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant pertod. The effective interest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payvments
throuph the expeeted life of the financial liabilitv. or. where appropriate. a shorter period, to the net earrving amount on initial
recognition.

De-recognition of financial liabilities
The Group de-recognises inancial hiabilitdes when the Group™s oblipations are discharged, cancelled or they expare,

1.14 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING
4} Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value. The gain or loss on re-measurcment to Fair value is recogised
immediately m profitor loss. Hoewever, where derivatives qualily Tor hedge accounting. recognition of any resultant gain or loss
depends on the nature of the ttent being hedged (sce below).

by Fair value hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument 1s designated as a hedge of variability in fair value of a recognised asset or liability or
an unreeoptiised [irm commitnient, all changes in the fair value of the derivative are recognised immediately in the income
statement. The carrving value of the hedged item is adjusted by the change in fair value that is atiributable to the risk being
hedged (even 1f 1t s normally carried at cost or amortised cost) and anv gains or losses on re-measurement are recognised
immediately in the ineome statement {even 1f those gains would normally be recognised in reserves).
¢)  Cash lTow hedges

Interest rate swaps are held to manage the interest rate exposures and are designated as cash {low hedges of floating rate
borrowings. Changes i the fir values of derivatives that are designated as cash [low hedges and are effective are recognised
directly i the statement ot changes in equity. Anyv ineffectiveness in the hedging relationships 1s included in the income
statement. ['he amounts delerred in equity are recognised in the income statement to match the recognition ol the hedged item.

dy  Iedge of a net investment

Giains or losses on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge are recognised in the statement of changes
in equity while any gains or losses relating, to the ineffecti ¢ portion are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. On disposal
of the foreign operation. the cumulative value of any such gains or losses recorded in equity is transferred to the statement of
profit or loss.

1.15  PROVISIONS
Provisions are measured at the value of management’s best estimate ot the expenditure required 1o settle the present obligation
at the balance sheet date. If material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash tlows of the Group at

rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money.

Provistons for onerous contracts are recognised when the Group believes that the unaveidable costs of meeting or exiting the
contractual obligations exceed the economic benetits expected to be received under the contract.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
1.16 TAXATION INCLUDING DEFERRED TAX
Corporation tax, where pay able. 1s provided on taxable profits at the current rate.

Deferred tax 1s provided on all temporary ditferences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assetls and habilittes and
their carrving amounts for tinancial reporung purposes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary difterences. carry -torward of unused tax asscts and unused tax
losses, 1o the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences.
and the carry-tforward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses can be utilised. The carrving amount of deferred meome tax
assets 1s reviewed al cach balance shect date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sutficicent taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deterred mnconie tax asset to be utihised.

Deferred tax assets end labilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply 1o the vear when the asset 15 realised
or the Hatility is settled. based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substamiively enacted at the balance sheet
date. Tax relating to iterns recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in the statement of comprehensive income.
Deterred tax assets and liabilitics have not been discountted.

1.17 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

A dispesal group quabifies as discontinued operation it 1t is 2 component of an entity that either has been disposed of] or 18
classified as held for sale. and:

»  represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations
« s part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations

O
* 15 a subsidiarny acquired exclusively with a view to resale

Discontinued eperations are excluded fron the results of continuing operations and are presented as a single amount as profit or
loss after tax from discontinued operations in the statement of comprehensive income.

Additional disclosures are provided in Note 7. All other notes to the financial statements include amounts for continuing
operations. uniess indicated otherwise

1.18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash cquivalents includes cash in hand. deposits at all banks. other liquid investments or funds with original maturitics
of three months or less and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts or loans where there 1s no right of set off are shown within
borrowings 1n current or non-current liabilitics on the balance sheet as appropriate.

1.19 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Diefined contribution plans

During the period the Group contributed to defined contribution pension schemes under which 1t pays contributions bused upon
i pereenitage of the members' basic salary. The schemes are administered by trustees either appointed by the Group or elected
by the members.

Contributions to defined contribution pension schemes are charged to the statement of comprehensive income according to the
vear i which they are pavable.

Fmplavee leave entitlements
Emplovee benefit provistons relate predominantly to annual leave and long service leave entitiements pavable to emplovees in
certain junsdictions.

1.20 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

Ordinary shares 1ssucd are shown as share capital at nominal value. The premium reeeived on the issuance of shares in excess
ol the nominal value is shown as share premivm within shareholders' equity.
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i. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
1.21 FOREIGN CURRENCY
a)  TFunctional and presentation currency

Hems included m the {inancial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currenev of the primary
cconomie envitonment in which the entity operates (“the functional curreney ™). The consolidated linancial statements are
presented i Pound Sterling, which is the Company s functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

by  Transactions and balances

Transactions denominalted in forcign currencies are recorded in Pound Sterling at the exchange rates ruling at the date of the
transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from such transactions are recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income. except when deferred in equity as qualifving cash [Tow hedges. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencics are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date and any exchange ditferences are taken 1o the
statement of comprehensive mcome,

Foreign exchange gains and losses relating 1o foreign currency loans and other foreign exchange adjustments are included within
finance income and expenses.

On sonsolidation incomes and cash flows of foreign subsidiaries are translated into Pound Sterling using average rates that
extsted during the accounting period. The balance sheets of loreign subsidiaries arc translated into Pound Sterling at the rates of
exchange ruling at the balunce sheet date. Gains or losses arising on the re-translation ol opening and closing net assets are
recognised in the statement of other comprehensive income and accumulated in a foreign exchange translation resere.

1.22  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's eperations expose it 1o a variety of linancial risks that include the effects of changes in foreign currency exchange
rates, market interest rates, credit risk and its liquidity position. The Group has in place a risk management programme that secks
to limit adverse effeets on the linancial performance of the Group which is outlined in the Directors™ Report.

The tair values of short-term deposits. loans and overdralls with a maturity of less than one vear are assumed (o be approximate
to their book values.

1.23 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

[n applying the Group's accounting policies. which are deseribed in Note . the Dircetors are required to make judgements (other
than those imvolving estimations) that have a significant impact on the amounts recognised and to make estimales and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of asscls and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources, The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other tactors that are considered 10 be relevant. Actual results
may difter trom lhese estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions (o accounting estimates are recognised
m the period i which the estimate is revised if the revision affeets only that period. or in the period of the revision and future
periods it the revision attects both current and future periods.

Tudgements made relating to the Directors” going concern assessment is detailed in the Strategic Report on page 6.

‘The kev assumptions concerning the future and other Kev sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date. that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrving amounts of the asscts and liabilities within the next {inancial
vear are discussed below:

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Gaoodwill and Intangibles

Annually the Group tests whether intangible assets and goodwill have suifered anyv impairment, in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Notes 1.9 and 1,10
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The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculauons
require management to make an estimate of the expected future cash {lows [rom cash-generating units and alse te choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculale the present value of those cash tiows. The period end impairment res iews were based
on forecasts as at the period end date, swhich bave not been updated to reflect the impact of Covid-19 as this 15 a non-adjusting
post balance sheet event. The impact of Covid-19 and reduction in forecasts next year may resull in impairment mn tuture periods,
additional sensitivity analvsis and further details of kev assumptions are grven in Note 9.

Income tuves

The Group 1s subject to lncome taxes in numerous jurtsdictions. A level of judgement is required in determintng the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are transactions and caleulations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The
CGrroup recognises habilities for anticipated tax i1ssues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the {inal
ax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were mitially recorded, such differences will impact the current
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities i the period in which such determination 1s made.

In 2019 the Group was subject to a review by the Australian Taxation Office ¢ ATO") as part of the Top 1000 companies under
their tax performance program. The Group has raised a provision that it considers may become pavable 1o the ATO (Le. the tux
liability and associated interest) pursuant to AASE Interpretation 23 in respect of some of these items. However. whilst several
of these matters are still in various states of progress with the ATO. the ultimate outcome 1s unknown and cannot be reliabiv
determined at the date of this report. Therefore the prevision ratsed against these uncertain items is one of the Group™s key
estimates, reter to Note 6 for details.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised tor all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Management judgement 1s required to determine the amount of deterred tax assets that
can be recognised. based upon the likely timing and level of [uture taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

1.24 REVISIONS TO IFRS NOT APPLICABLE IN 2019

At the date ol anthorisation of these financial statements. the Group has not applied the following new and revised [I'RS
Standards that have been 1ssued but are not vel effective and in some cases had not vet been adopted by the B

« RS 17 Insurance Contracts

«  IFRS 10 and TAS 28 (amendments) Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and i1s Associate or Joint
Venture

*  Amendments to [AS | and IAS 8 Deftnition of material

= Conceptual Framework Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards

The directors do not expecet that the adoption of the Standards listed above will have a material impact on the [inancial statements
of the Group in luture periods. except as noted below:

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
II'RS 17 establishes the principles for the recognition. measurcment, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts and
supersedes IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts.

IFRS 17 outlines a general model. which 1s meditied for insurance contracts with direct participation features. described as the
variable fee appreach. The general model is simplilied if certain criteria are met by measuring the lability for remaining coverage
using the premium allocation approach. The general model uses current assumptions to estimate the amount, timing and
uncertainty of future cash flows and i explicntly measures the cost of that uncertainty . It takes into account market interest rates
and the impact of policvholders™ options and guarantees.

The Standard is effective tor annual reporting periods beginning on or after | January 2021, with early application pennitted. 1t
1s applied retrospectively unless impraciicable, in which case the medified retrospective approach or the fair value approach is
applied. An exposure draft Amendments to IFRS 17 addresses concerns and implermnentation challenges that were identified alter
IFRS 17 was published. One ot the mam changes proposed is the deferral of the date ot inttial application of 1FRS 17 by one
vear lo annual periods beginning on or atter | January 2022,

For the purpese ol the transition requirements. the date of initial application is the start if the annual reporting period in which
the entity [irst applies the Standard, and the transition date is the beginning of the period immediately preceding the date of

initial application.

5
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SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (amendments) Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
The amendments o [FRS 10 and TAS 28 deal with situations where there is a sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. Spectfically. the amendments state that gans or losses resulting from the loss of control ol a
subsidiary that does noet contain a business in a transaction with an assoctale or a joint venture that 1s accounted lor using the
equity method. are recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors” interests m that assocwite
or joint venture. Similarly. gains and losses resulting from the remeasurement of investments retained in any former subsidiary
i that has become an associate or a joint venture that 1s accounted for using the equitny method) W fair value are ecogmsed 1 the
former parent’s profit or Joss onls to the extent of the unrelated imvestors” interests in the new assoclate or joint venture.

The elfective date of the amendments has vel to be set by the IASB: however. earlier application of (he amendments ts permitted.
The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of these amendments may have an impact on the Group's
consolidated [inancial statements in future periods should such transactions arise.

Amendments to [AS 1 and [AS 8 Definition of material

The amendments are intended o make the defmition of material in [TAS 1 easier to understand and are not intended w alter the
underlying coneept of materiality in [FRS Standards. The concept of “obscuring’ material information with immaterial
mmformation has been included as part of the new definition,

The threshold for materiality inlluencing users has been changed trom “could influence” to “could reasonably be expected to
intluence”

The delmition of material in TAS 8 has been replaced by a reference to the definition of material in [AS 1 In addition. the TASB
amended other Standards and the Conceptual Framework that contain & defimition of material or refer to the wrm “matenal” to
ensure consistency

The amendments are applied prospectively for annual periods begmning on or after 1 January 20200 with earlier application
peritted.

Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards

Together witly the revised Conceptual Framework. which became effective upon publication on 29 March 2018, the IASB has
also issued Amendments 1o References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS $tandards The document contains amendments
10 IFRS 2. {FRS 3. TFRS 6, IFRS 14, TAS 1, [IAS 8. IAS 34, IAS 37, TAS 38, ITRIC 12, [IFRIC 19, IFRIC 20, [IFRIC 22 and S1C-
32.

Not all amendments, however, update those pronouncements with regard to reterences to and quotes from the framework so that
they refer to the revised Conceplual Framework. Some pronouncements are only updated to mdicate which verston of the
Framework thev are referencing to (the TASC Framework adopted by the 1ASI in 2001, the TASH Framework of 20140 or the
new revised Framework of 2018) or to indicate that defiitions in the Standard have not been updated with the new detininons
developed n the revised Coneeptual Framework

The amendments, where they actually are updates, are effective for annual perieds begianing on or atter 1 January 2020, with
carly application permitied.

Other standards not yet effective
There are no other standards that are not vet ¢ffective and that would be expected to have a material impact on the entity in the
current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable [uture ransactions.



SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2, SEGMENTAL ANALYSES

The primary reportable segments of the Group have been identitied as UK & Furope Pathways, AN/ Pathwayvs and North
Americy Pathwavs These are in line with the internal reporting of the Group's performance 1o the Chiet Operating Decision
Maker. (COIDRM"y identified as the CEO, Emma Lancaster. Each segment represents a cash-generating unit {CGUT). (roodwili
has been allocated to the UK & Fuarope Pathway s and ANZ, Pathway s CUls (reter to Note V)

£m Revenue Operating loss

Period ended 31
December 2019

O g continning operations hasis:
University Partnerships by Geographical Segment '

United Kingdom & Farope 79.4 13.9
Australia & New Zealand (2.0 218
Nerth America 7.2 (1.2}
Total University Partnerships 148.6 36.5
Shared functional & corporate cosls - (14.0)
Total revenuce and adjusted EBITDA™ 148.6 22.5
I'xeeptional and other 1tems - (10.2)
Total revenue and reported EBITDA 148.6 12.3
Impairnment - (0.3)
Depreciation and amortisation - (23.7)
Total revenue and Operating loss 148.6 (11.7)

(1) Adjusted EBITD.Y is defined ag camnings before interest. tax, depreciation, amortisation. impairment and exeeptional and other itenis.
(i1} During the period there was no trading between segments and central and shared costs have been allocated on a reasonahle and consistent basis.

The above operating toss has been reconeiled to the loss before tax on the face of the conselidated statement of Group
comprehiensive income on page 19,

3. OPERATING LOSS

The tollowing charges are meluded within cost of sales. administrative cests and depreciation and amortisation, on a continuing,
operations basis:

2019

Lm

1Jepreciation of propertyv. plant and ¢quipment. 3.3
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 8.4
Amortisation of intangible assels 12.0
[mpairment of mtangible assets 0.1
Allowance for bad debt 1.5

Services provided by the Group's auditor and network firms

2019

£m

Fees pavable to the Company™s auditer Tor the audit ol pareat company and consolidated 0.2
Fees pavabie to the Company s auditor and tts assoclates for the audit of the Company s 0.3
Total fees pavable tor audit services (.5



SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. FINANCE INCOME

Finance income:

Bank mterest

Finance lease receivables

3. FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs;

Interest — term loan

Interest — revolving eredit facility
Amortisation of deterred finance setup costs
Other fmance costs

Interest on lease liabilitics

Tnrealised foreign exchange losses (Note 8)

6. TAXATION
Analysis of tax credit in the period

Carrent tax

- K ax

- Lverseas lax

- Owerseas tax o respeet of prior pertods

Total current tax charge 1o the Stalement of comprehensive income
Analvsed by

Total current tax charpe on continuing vperations

Total current tax charge

Deferred Tax (Note 15)

- UK origination and reversal of temporary differences

- UK adjustments in respect of prior periods

- Overseas origination and temporary dilferences

- Overscas adjustments in respect ol prior periods

Total deferred 1ax credit to the Statement of comprehensive income
Analvsed by

Total deferred 1ax eredit on conunumg operations

Total current tax credit

Total tax credit to the Statement of comprehensive income

Analyvsed bv:
Total tax eredit on contnuing opetations

Total tax credit to the Statement of comprehensive income

38

2019
fm

98
0.1
0.7
0.8
3.0
0.7
151

2019
£m
.1)
(1.2)
0.1
(1.2)

(1.2)
(1.2)

3.6

(O.1)
1.9

(0.2)

4.0
4.0

4.0

1.0
4.0



SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. TAXATION (CONT'D)

The tax lor the period dilfers to the standard rale of corporation tax in the UK 19%. Taxation lor other jurisdictions 1s
caleulated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The total credit for the period can be reconciled to the profit in the staternent of comprehensive income as tfollows:

2019
£&m
LLoss before laxation from continuing operations 26.5
Loss before tax from discontinued operations 2.4
Loss before taxation 28.9
Loss on ordinary activities multiplied by rate of corporation tax m UK of 19% 55
Elleets of
Hems not taxable or deductible (1.5
Tax losses not recognised/paid (0.6)
Difference in overseas rates ol tax a8
Adjusiments in respeet of prior perieds  corporabon tax 01
Adjustments in respect of prior pertods — deferred tax (0.3
Total taxation credit 1.0

The Group was subjecl 10 a review by the Australian Taxation Office ("AT(Y) as purt of the Top 1060 companies under their
tax performanee program. As part of this review the ATO identified a number ol arcas for which it determined that there was
cither a low, medium or high level assurance. The CGroup has raised a provision that 11 considers may become pavable to the
ATO (le. the tax hability and associated mterest) pursuant to AASE Interpretation 23 in respect of some of these items
However, whilst several of these matters are stll in various states of progress with the AT(), the ultimate outcome is unknown
and cannot be reliably determmed at the date of this report. [n addition, the Group is in the process of obtaining 2 private binding
ruling from the ATO in respect of the withholding tax implication and the deductibility of interest on its external funding
arranpements [ollowing the change of ownership on 31 May 2019, At this point, the Group is still m discussion with the ATO.
and the outcome of this ruling 1s unknewn and cannot be reliably determined at the date of this report. In summary, a total
provision of AU $2.9m (GBI £1.6m) has been raised against these unceriam items.

7. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Since 2018, strategically Study Group has been focused on the core University Partnierships business and as a conscquence.
discontinued the non-core parts of the business. These non-core business segments outlined below which, whilst material hines
of business at the point of classifving as discontinued, are now relatively small and therefore have been classified as one
discontinued business line {Discontinued businesses’™) for the period ended 31 December 2019,

Discontinucd businesses comprise:

- Embassy English (‘Embassy’) - the global I'mbassy business was sold in 2018, In the period 1o 31 December 2019
amounts recognised as revenue and operating expenscs predominantly related o properts costs. Final amounts due in
relation Lo the sale are recoverable in 2020.

- HE Proprictary Brands (*HE Proprietary’) - includes Martin HE and FEndeavour. Martin HE was formally
discontinued in 2017 and all students were taught oul by the ond of 2019, The full exit of the business is on track for
earlv 2021, The sale of I'ndeavour completed in 2018 and cash of £2.1 million was reccived in September 2019 in
refation 1o monies held in Bscrow from the date of sale, following the satistaction of certain criteria.

- Yocational Education and Training business (*VET’) - VET was formally discontinued in 2017 and ali students
were taught out by the end of 2019, Whilst the exit of the VIIT operations is now complete, refund claims continue to
be received with £0.7 million of refunds paid in the period to 31 December 2019,
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SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONT'D)

Acoordingly, the above discontinued operating segment has been ¢lassified as a discontinued operation and 15 not presented
within the segmental note. The results of the discontinued operation for the period are presented below:

Total
2019 fm
Revenue 0.4
Operaling expenses (2.8
Loss for the period from discontinued operation (2.4)
Presented as:
Before Exceptional and Other Items (1.8)
Exeeptional and Other Nems (Costs relating 10 discontinued operations. Note 8) (0.0}
2.4)
The net cash {lows mcurred by the discontinued operation are as tollows:
Total
2019 £m
Met cash used i operating activilies (L4
Net cash generated from linancing activities 2.1
Net cash inflow 0.7
8 EXCEPTIONAL AND OTHER ITEMS
Group Group Group
Exceptional cher Total
ltems items
2019 2019 2019
£ tm £m
Exceptional and other items included within operating
loss:
Transaction costs 6.0 - 6.0
Strategie mvestments - 1.9 1.9
Restructuring costs 0.9 (.9 1.8
Shareholder & management fecs - 0.9 0.9
Property provision (0 H - (0.4)
6.5 3.7 10.2
Inipairment 0.2 - 2
Exceptional and other itcms included within finance costs:
Foreign exchange losscs - 0.7 0.7
Total costs relating to continuing operations 6.7 4.4 11.1
Exceptional and other items included within discortinued operations:
Costs relating to discontinued operations (Nete 7) 0.6 - 0.6
0.6 - 0.6
Taotal exceptional and other costs 7.3 1.4 1.7

Exceptional items are those which are malterial in size or are non-recurring in nature. Other items arc not necessarily non-
recurring in nature, but the Directors believe that it is helpful o show these amounts separately as they are not direetly hinked to
the recurring trading operations of the business.
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8. EXCEPTIONAL AND OTHER ITEMS (CONT’D}

Exceptional items included within operating loss:

+  Transaction costs included £6.0 million transaction fees in respeet of the change of ownership.

= Restructuring costs comprise of projects in the period including £0.7 million relating to a restructuring project within
the ANZ division and £0.4 million of associated legal Lees, which was partially offset by a £0.2 million of historic aged
balance sheet clean-up.

+  Adjustinents made to previously recognised provisions for onerous property contracts which have not been capitalised
under IFRS 16 due to the available exemptions and practical expedients on transition dates, resulting i a gain of £0.4
mijlwon.

+  Tmpairment dems relate (o impatrments of centre contract assets associated with certain North America centres.

Exceptional items included within the discontinued operation:
*  Lxceptional items relating to the discontinued VET business meluded final redundaney costs and legel fees of £0.1
mitlion.
+  Dxeeptional items include released aged balance sheet halances and {inal vansaction fees relating o the prior vear
I'mbassy and Findeavour disposals and the 2019 ACPL sale totalling £0.2 million.
»  Exceptional items includes bad debt provision lor EC totalling £0.3 million.

Other items:

Other ftems include strategic mvestments which comprise of upfront investments lor the benefit of future vears. non-executive
director fees. restructuring costs and unrealised 1'X loss that the directors believe are beneficial to strip out when analvsing the
underly ing trading result tor the period.

+  Strategic investments in the period related to the Group's strategy project of £1.7 million and £0.2 million of University
ol Western Australan (CTIWA™Y additional contract tender costs.

*  Restructuring costs in the period consist of corporate reorganisation tees, transformation costs tn ANZ. division and
SCTIOT Management reeruiting fees totalling £0.9 million. The restructuring and recruitiment costs arose as a result of
the change in ownership and have therefore been classitied as *Other” for the purposc ot disclosing them separately
from and understanding the underlving trading result.

»  Sharcholder and management fees include £0.3 million of non-exceutive dircetor fees and £0.6 million of semior
management long-term incentive plan scheme costs.

*  lnrealised foreign exchange losses for the period were £0.7 million due to net unfavourable exchange rate movements
during the period.

9, GOODWILL
2019 Goodwill
£fm
COST
Current period acquisitions {(Note 29) 292.3
Fxchange rale adjustments (4.6)
At 31 December 2019 287.7

Impairment testing

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment. or more {requently il there are indications thal goodwill might be impaired.
For the purposc of annual impatrment testing, goodwill 1s allocated to the operating segments expected to benefil [rem the
svnergies of the business combinations n which the poodwill arises as set out below | and is compared 1o 1ts recoverable value:

Goodwill allocated to operating segments 2019

im
UK & Furope Pathways 142.4
Australiz & New Zealand Pathwavs 145.3

287.7

Nerth America Pathway's
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9. GOODWILL (CONT'D)

The recoverable amount of cach segment wus determined based on value-in-use calculations, covering a detarled tive vear
tforecast. followed by an extrapolation of expected cash tlows for the remaining useful lives using a lerminal growth rate
determined bv management. The present value of the expected cash fows of each segment is determined by applying a suitable
discount rate retlecting current market assessments ol the time value of money and risks specitic to the segment. bench-marked
to the recent change in ownership transaction. The estimate of the recoverable amount for each CGUs 1s particularly sensitive 1o
changes in the forecast NSEs as well as the discount and terminal growth rates as detailed in the sensitivity analvsis below.

Key assumptions Terminal Post-tax

growth rate discount rate
UK & Europe Pathways 2.0% 7 4%
Australia & New Zealand Pathwayvs 2.0% 7.8%

The growth rates retlect the long-term average growth rates for cach segment. The discount rates reflect appropriate adjustments
refating to market risk and specific risk factors of each segment. For referencee, the equivalent pre-ltax discount rates tor the UK
& Furope Pathwavs and Australia & New Zealand Pathways CGUs were 8.9% and 11.1% respeetively.

Cash flow assumptions

The free cash flow projections considered as at 31 December 2019 were based on the “five vear plan” model used at the time of
the change in ownership, consistent with the model used to value the acquisition intangible asscts on 31 May 2019 The kes
assumptions include reasonable growth rates and prolit marpins i each CGUL based on past experienee in this market. No
significant or unreasonable efliciency improvements have been taken into account and prices and wages reflect publicly avaiiable
forecasts of nflation for the industry.

Sensitivity

‘The Group has conducted an analvsis of the sensitivity of the impairment test o changes in the kev assumptions used to delermine
the recoverable amount [or each of the CGU s to which goodwill s allocated. Given the balance sheet date 1s relatively elose to
the date on which goodwill was recognised (31 May 2019) and given there were no significant changes to the busimess or market
betw een these two dates, headroom is refatively small at 31 December 2019 in line with expectations. Therefore the estiniate of
the recoverable amount for cach CGls 18 partteularly sensitive to changes in the discount and terminal grow th rates. 1f' the post-
lax discount rate used were 1o be mereased by | percentage basis point from 7.4% and 7.8% to 8.4% and 8.8% 1 the TIK &
Furope and Australia and New Zealand Pathways CGUSs respectisely, impairment losses of £21.8 mullion and £257 million
would have to be recognised against goodwill. 11 the terminal growth rate were to decrease by 0.3 percentlage basis points trom
2.0% 1o 1.53% for both CGUSs, impaimment losses of £2.9 million would have to be recognised against poodwill in the Australia
and New Zealand Pathways CGU. whereas in the UK and Europe Pathways CGU this would vield a break-cven position with
no mpairment and nil headroons.

Further sensitivity anulvsis has been carried out on the origmal impuirment model in response to Conid-19, including the
application of downside scenarios and sensitivity analysis as discussed in the Going Conecern assessment on page 6, In a
downside scenario of reduced WSE's, where 2020 post tax cash flows tor UK. & Europe reduce by £17.2 nullion. and Australia
and New Zealand pathways by £16.0 million, and all other assumptions including cash fTows in tuture periods are maintained at
the original impairment model levels, a break-even position would result for both CGL's.

Management 1s not currently aware of any other reasonably possible changes in the kev assumptions on which the recoverable

amounts of cach of the (roup’s CGUs is based that would cause the aggregate carrving amount to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of the related CGUSs.
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10. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2019
University . Centre Coursc
Partnership‘s Brands  Software Contract  Development Tatal
£m £m £m £m £fm im

COST
Current period aequisitions 394 4 12.4 11.4 36 (4 4222
Additions - - 33 24 - 5.7
Misposals - - (. - (0. 1y (0.2)
Transters - - - 0.2y - 0.2
Lxchange dilTercnee (6.3) - (1D (0.1) - (7.7
At 31 December 2019 387.9 12.4 13.5 5.7 0.3 419.8
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION &
IMPAIRMENT
Charge for the period 7.7 0.2 37 0.3 0.1 12.0
Disposals - - - - (R URY!
Impainment charge - - - 0.2 - 0.2
Fxchange differcnce - - (0.9} - - (0.9
At 31 December 2019 7.7 (.2 2.8 0.5 0.0 11.2
Net book value at 31 December 2019 380.2 12.2 10.7 5.2 0.3 408.6

Intangible assets acquired 1 a business combnation are identitfied and recopnised separately trom poodwill where they satisty
the definition of an intangible assct and their fair values can be measured reliably, Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recorded n the functional curreney of the CGU to which they relate. Subsequent to inttial recogmition at fir
value. intangible assets acquired in a business combination are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses al the balance sheet exchange rate, on the same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.

Uwo categories of acquired intangible assets have been identified and recognised: University Partnerships (31 December 2019:
£387.9m) representing the contractual relationships with universities with whom Study Group has the exclusive nght to provide
“pathway ™ and other courses, largeted prinwarily at overseas students: and Brands (31 December 2019 £12.4m) representing the
‘Bellerbys™ brand 1 the UKL under which Study Group provides its own bespoke pathway and [urther edueation offerings
divectly t© students without these being branded under a pariner university.

Other inlangible assets include Course Development for offtine or online courses developed for specific eenmires. as well as
Centre Contracl asscts comprising mainly of launch costs recognised in line with 1FRS 135, Software includes any soltware
purchased or developed internally from which [uture economic benelits are expected

Dunng the period. £0.2m was transiorred [rom centre contracts to leaschold improvements (refer to Note 113

Amortisation for all classes of intangible assets 1s included within “depreciation and amertisation” in the statement of
comprehensn e mmeome.

An annual impairment review is performed cach vear in December, as well as anv impairment triggers arc reviewed throughout
the vear, Speeitic impatrment in 2019 relate to impairments of centre contract assets associated with certain North America
centres. 13ased on the annual impairment tests performed, no additional impatrment has been recorded in 2019 (see Note 9).



SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Frechold land Leasehold Equinment Total
and buildings improvements qup
£m £m £m £&m
COST
Current period acquisitions 73 8.9 6.0 22.8
Additions - 3R 30 6.8
IJisposals - - (1.8) (L®
Transfers - 0.2 - 0.2
[xchange difference - (0.4 (0.4) (0.%)
At 31 December 2019 73 12.5 7.4 27.2
ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION
Charge for the period 0.2 1.1 2.0 3.3
Disposals - - (1.8) (1L.8)
Exchange difference - (0.2) 0.2y 0.4)
At 31 December 2019 0.2 L9 - 1.1
Net book value at 31 December 21 11.6 74 6.1
2019
12. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
Land and buildings Cm_nputer Total
equipment
£m £m £m
COST
Current period acquisitions 126.2 0.3 126.5
Additions 0.2 01 0.3
Disposals 0.3 (0.3)
Impainments (0.6) - (0.6)
Revaluations 0.0 - 0.6
Exchunge difference (1.2) - (1.2)
At 31 December 2019 124.9 (4 125.3
ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION
Charge for the period 8.3 01 8.4
Disposals (0.3 - 0.3)
Forewgn currency translation (0.2) - 0.2)
At 31 December 209 7.8 .1 7.9
Net book value at 31 December 2019 117.1 0,3 117.4
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12. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONT'D)

Under the business combination the Group acquired a number of lease contracts for assets including student accommodation,
schools. classrooms, otfice buildings. [T data centres and motor vehicles, The average lease term of leases acquired from the
date of acquisition was 5 vears.

Contracts acquired under a business combination that meet the definition of a lease under IFRS 16 require specitic measurement
considerations. Lease Nabilities acquired have been recorded based on the present value of the remaining lease pavments as if'a
new lease had been acquired on the aequisition date. with a corresponding night-of-use asset of equal value being recognised,
adjusted [or lavourable or unfay ourable terms compared o market rates as well as other transitional adjustments. The lair value
adjustment recognised at 31 May 2019 compared to the acquired net assets carrving value resulted in an increase of the right-
of-use assets by £6.0 million and an increase of the lease liabilities by £6.3m. resulting in an increase to Goodwill of £0.3 million.
The majonty of the Group's right-ol-use assets relate 1o land & buildings, predominantly located in the UK (£86 % million) and
Australia ¢£25 4 million).

The weighted average lessees™ incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities recognised in the staternent of financial
position on the date of acquisition is shown in the table below:

Incremental Borrowing Rate per Lease Bucket

0-5 Years 5-10 Years 10-15 Years > 15 Years
Region
UK & Rest of World 2.67% 3.23% 3.33% 3497%
Australia 4.6§% 4.86% 3.29% n/a
New Z.caland n/a 4.906% n/a n/a

Land & buildings additions in the pertod largelv related to Aberdeen, a new University Partner (£0.2 million) Compuler
equipment additions in the period (£0.1 million) refated to the renewal of the Sydnev Data Centre contract.

Right-of-use assets relating to lease contracts for sites which are ¢losed or discontinued are considered standalone C(iUs as they
generate cash inflows independent from the rest of the group. At the date of acquisition. such right-of-usc assels have been tested
feor impairment and have been writien down to therr value-in-use in accordance with TAS 36. At the financial period end, a
reassessment of the value-m-use of such asscts has been performed. with the net impairment charge of £0.6m reflecting the
change in assumptions between the acquisition date and the vear end

The maturity analvsis of lease Habilities s presented in Note 18,

2019
Amounts recognised in profit and loss £m
Depreciation expense on right-of-use assels R.4
Interest expense on lease habelities 3.0
Fxpense relating to short-term leases 3.0
Expense relating lo leases of low value assets 0.1
[neome from sub-leasing right-of-usc asscts (0.2)

AL 31 December 2019, the Group s committed to £2 million [or short-term leases.

Approximately one third of the property leases in which the Group is the lessee contain rent review clauses within the lease
contract, the majority of which are subject to indexation inercases. all based within the UK. In contrast. the majority of leases in
Australia have tixed increases built into the lease contract which are therefore meluded in the right-of-use assct valuation
calculated at the comniencement of the lease.

indexation price increases in 2019 were 5.7% on average and the impact of expected future rent increases is not considered (o
present a stpniticant liquidity nisk 1o the Group.

The total cash oulflow for leases amount to £13.8 mallion,

e
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13. INVESTMENTS

The movements in the net book value of interests in joint ventures arc as follows:

Interest in

joint venture

2019

£m

Current period acquisitions 0.3
Share of associale’s profit -
At 31 December 1.3

Subsidiary Undertakings

Details of the subsidiary undertakings of the Company. which are included in the consolidated financial statements, are set out

in the following table.

Name of Entity Country Of. Owncrship Nature
. Incorporation Interest
Centrolled Entities: %o Method
DU Holdings SPV Pty Lid Australia 100 Indircct Holding
LI Investments SPV Pty Tid Australia 100 Indireet [Tolding
Stady Group (Fmance) Pty Lid Australia 100 Indirect Holdmg
Seuds Group Py Lid Australia 100 Indirect Tolding
Australian Institute ol Applicd Sciences Pty Ltd Australia 104 Indirect Trading
Applied Training Pry Ltd Australia 100 Indirect Dormant
Study Group Australia Pty 1ad Australia 100 Indirect Trading
Tavlors Institute of Advanced Studies I.td ™ Australia - Indirect Dormant
Studyv Group do Brazil Agencliamento e Participacoes LTDA Brazl 100 Indrreet Trading,
Study Group Canada Higher Fducation Inc. Canada 100 Indirect Trading
Kuedi Edueation Consulting (Beijing) [.td China 100 Indirect Dormant
SGIPL Study Greup India Private Limited Indta 100 Indirect Trading
8¢ Study Group Malaysia Sdn. Bhd Malavsia 100 Indirect Trading
Study Group N7 Tad New Zealand [G0 Indirect Trading
SGT Consultaney Services Nigena Nigeria 160 Indirect Trading
LU UK Intermediate Lid '™ United Kingdom 100 Indireet Holding
KDU UK Management Services Ltd '™ United Kingdom 100 Indirect Holding
EDU UK Topeo Ld ™ United Kingdom 100 Indirect [olding
Study Group Loldings UK 1td ™ United Kingdom 100 Indirect Holding/
ormant
Study Group UK Lid Untted Kingdom 100 Indireet Holding
Bellerbys UK LAd (formerly Study Group Ltd) United Kingdom 100 Indireet 1Jormant
Study Group Distance Learning Lid ™ [nited Kingdom 100 Indirect Trading
Study Group Lid (formerly Bellerbvs Hducational Services 1td)y ' United Kingdom 100 Indireet Trading
$G Global Bideo Ltd '™ United Kingdem 100 Indirect  THolding
SG Global Mideo Ltd ™ United Kingdom 100 Indirect Holding,
5G Global Fineo Lid United Kingdom 100 Direct Holding
L:C Higher Bdueation Ine. USA 100 Indircet Dormant
EDU US THoldeo Inc. USA 160 Indirect Holding
Study Group USA Higher Education L1L.C TSA 100 Indirect Trading
Study Grroup USA Ine. USA 100 Indirect Trading
Joint Venture:
Lniversity of Svdneyv Foundation Program Py Ltd ™ Australia 50 Indirect 1rading

The registered address of all Group companies registered in Austrahia is: Level 24, 201 Ehzabeth Strect, Svdney 2000, Australia

The registered addsess of the above Group cormpany registered in Braril is: Suite 81, 8™ Floor, Avenue Bridageiro. Faria Lima.
Neo 1234, Jardim Paulistano, Sao Paulo, 01432-002.

The registered address of the above Group company registered in Canada 150 Suite 900-1959 Upper Water Street, Halifux, Nova
Scotia. B3J 3IN2.
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13. INVESTMENTS (CONT’D)

The registered address of the above Group company registered in China is” Units 1707, 12 Tower, No. C-12, Guanghua Road.
Betjng. China.

The registered address of the above Group company registered in India is: 423A8&B. 4™ Floor World Trade Cenire. Barakhamba
Lanc. New Delhi

The registered address of the above Group company registered in Malaysia is: Level 21, Suite 2101, The Gardens South Tower.
Mid Valley City. Lingkaran Sved Putra, 392000 Kuala Lumpur.

The registered address the above Group company registered in New Zcaland 1s: Tas lors FHouse. 75 Karangahape Road, Auckland
1000, New Zealand.

The registered wddress the above Group company registered in Nigeria is: First Business Alliance Suites. 2™ Floor Plot 5. Chiefl
Yesuf. Ablodun Street, Victoria Island, Lages, Nigeria

The registered address of all Group companies registered in the UK is: | Billinton Way, Brighton, Hast Sussex. BN1 41LE.

The registered address of all Group companies registered in the USA is: 2711 Centreville Rd. Surte 400, Wilmingten. Delaware
19808, USA,

(1) This entity s classificd as a controlied entity as the Group has the capacity {o controf both the operating and {inancial decisions, and the capacity to
dominate and control the composition of the Board ot Directors.

(i)  EDU UK Management Services 1ad (registered number: (17283370). Study Group Holdings UK 1ad (registered number: 05888001). Study Group Distance
I.caming Ltd {registered number: 07145364, SO Global Bideo 11d (registered number: 11827693 8 Global MidCo 1ad {registered number: 1182764R)
and 8G Global Finco Ltd (registered number: 11827569). wholly owned subsidiarics of the compans _ are exempt from the requirencnts of the Companics
et 2006 relating to the audit of individual accounts by virtue of section 479 for non-dormant subsidiarics. All outstanding hablitics as at 31 December
2019 of EDU UK Management Services Tad. Study Group Holdings UK Ltd. Studv Group 1td. Study Group Distance Leaming Lid. 8G Global Bidoo
1ad, SO Global Mideo Lid and SO Global Fineo 114 have been guaranteed by the Company and no Hability s expected to arise under the guarantee,

(ili) ‘The Universitv of Sydney Foundation Program Pty 14d is a joint venture between The University of Sydney and Study Group Australia Pty Timited. Under
this arrangement the joint venture entity is required to pay rovalties and fees for the provision of services to its joint venture partners. In total. these
commitments are caleulated as approximately 87%0 of pross revenue recognised in the accounting period. The principal place of business for this joint
venture is at the University of Svdnev, and the registered office address of the joint venture entity is Level 24. 201 Elizabeth Street, Svdney 2600, Nustralia,
Hoth parties hold eyual ownership and voting rights of 50%0 cach.

47



SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES
2019
£m
Amounts receivable under finance leases:
Year 1.1
Year 2 1.1
Year 3 0.9
Year 4 0.6
Year 5 0.4
Onwards 2.6
Undiscounted lease payments 6.7
Less: uneamed finance income (1.2)
Present value of lease pavments receivable 8.5
Impairment loss allowance -
Net imvestment i the lease 3.5
Undiseounted lease pavments analvzed as:
Recoverable after 12 months 5.6
Recoverable within 12 months 1.1
6.7
Nel investment in the lease analvsed as:
Recoverable atter 12 months 4.7
Recoverable within 12 months 0.8
5.5

During the period. the Group acquired companies with intermediary lessor arrangements that meet the definmion of a finanee
sublease, located 1n Australia (two subleases) and the United Kingdom (one sublease). The acquired companies had previoush
entered into such finance leasing arrangements as a lessor for certain properties which were no longer used relating to
discontinued businesses and operations. The average term ol those linance leases entered into 18 6 7 v ears,

The Group™s exposure 1o foreign currency risk as a result of the leasing arrangements is not considered 1o be significant, as a
large proportion of the et investiment in the lease is denominated in Sterling (£3.7 million).
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15. DEFERRED TAX

Deterred tax is calculated in full on temperary differences under the liability method. The moyement on the deterred tax assets
and lighilities 1s as shown below:

Acquired via Created on (Debit)/Credit Unrealised Closing
husiness acquisition to P&L Foreign balance
combination Exchange
gain /(loss)
£m £m £fm £fm im
Deferred tax assets
Tax losses carried forward 1.9 - 0.2 - 2.1
Fixed assets 36 - 0.6 - 4.2
Lecase liabilities 1.1 - (1.7 - 9.4
Accruals and provisions . 33 - 1.1 - 4.4
) 19.9 - 0.2 - 20.1
Deferred tax liabilities
Intangible assets (0.8) (97.7 23 1.9 (94.3)
Right-of-usc asscls 10,1y - 2.0 - (8.1)
Prepayments B 2.7 - 0.7 - 2
(13.6) (97.7) 5.0 1.9 (104.4)
Net deferred fax asset / (liability) 6.3 (97.7) 5.2 1.9 (84.3)

Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of all losses and other temporary differences o the extent that it is probable
that those assets will be recovered.

The below table shows the deferred tax balances by jurisdiction: 2019
fm
Australia & UK Total
New Zealand £m
£m fm

Deferred tax asscts

Tax osses carmed forward 0.1 2.0 2.1
Property. ptant and equipment 1.0 3.2 4.2
[Lcase habilities 9.4 - 9.4
Aceruals and provisions 3.2 1.2 4.4

13.7 6.4 20.1

Deferred tax liabilities

Inlangible assets (0.2) (94.D (94.3}
Ripght-of-use assets (8.1 - (8.1)
Prepavments (2.0) - 2.0

(10.3) (94 1) (104.4)
Net deferred tax asset / (kiability) 3.4 (87.7) (84.3)

Finance Bill 2016 enacied provisions to reduce the main rate of UK corporation tax 1o 17% from 1 April 2020. However. in the
March 2020 Budget it was announced thai the reduction mn the UK rate to 17% will now not oceur and the Corporation Tax Rate
will be held at 19%. As substantive enactment 1s after the balance sheet date, deferred tax balunces as at 31 December 2019
continue to be measured at a rate of 17%. If the amended tax rate had been used. the deferred tax liability would have been
£10.1in higher.
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i6. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2019
fm

CURRENT:
Trade receivables'™ 39.1
Loss allowance 8.1
Trade recevables  net 31.0
Other receivables 1.1
Prepay ments 20.0
58.1

{1y Tuition fees in some jurisdtetions are invoiced in full prior to course commencement, however they are not pavable umil commencement of
cach semester resulting i non-current revcivables. No interest is charged on trade receivables.

The lollowing table shows the movement in the loss allowance that has been recognised for trade reccivables:

2019
£m
At acquisition 6.7
Impairment losses recognised on recervables L.:
Impairment losses reversed (0.1)
Balance as at 31 December 2019 8.1
‘I'rude receivables can be analysed as [ollows:
Ageing of trade receivables net of loss allowance
Ageing of trade receivables net of loss allowance 2019
£m
Nol past due 21.0
30 - 60 davs G.4
60 - 90 dayv s 1.6
90 - 120 davs 1.3
=120 davs 0.7
31.0

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the Group considers any change in the eredit quality ot the trade receivable
from the date the credit was mmtially granted up to the reporting date. The concentration of credit risk s imited due to the
customer base being large and unrelated.

Agerng of impaired receivables 2019
fm

1 - 120 davs 0.1y
> 120 davs (8.0
(8.1)

The net charge relating to the inercase in loss allowance has been included in 'adnunistrative expenses’ m the statement of
comprehensive income,
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16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT D)
Trade receivables represent amouts due from students and university partners or, in some cases. their agents.

17. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2019
£m
CURRLENT:
Trade pavables 16.9
Other pavables and accruals 55.4
Interest acerued — term loans 5.7
80.0
18. UNEARNED REVENUES
2019
£m
Deferred income (current) 113.0
All deferred income arises from students paying tuition fees in advance.
19. LEASE LIABILITIES
2019
£m
Maturity analysis:
Year | 1.5
Yeur 2 25.0
Year 3 17.9
Year 4 [6.8
Year 3 12.8
Onwards 759
167.9
[.ess: uncarned miterest (38.5)
1294
Analysed as:
Non-current 113.2
Current 162
1294

The Group does not fuce a significant liquidity risk with regard (o its lease liabilities. Lease contracts are managed by the Group's
property and operations departments, and the impact of leasc liabilities on future foreeast cash flows are monitored within the

Group' s treaswry function.
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20. PROVISIONS

Mor ement in provisions:

Current period acquisilions
Addiional provision recognised
Provisions utilised

[‘oreign currency translation

CURRENT:
Iimplovee benefits
Property provisions

(Other

NON CURRENT:
Emplovee benefits
Property provisions

Other

Employee ] .
Benefit Property Other Total
2019 2019 2019 2019
£m £im £fm fm
4.6 4.7 1.4 10.7
2.6 0.2 0.2 3.0
(2.0) (0.6} (0.9) (3.5)
{0.2) - - (0.2)
5.0 4.3 0.7 10.0
2019
£fm
3.8
3
0.7
4.8
2019
£m
1.2
4.0
5.2

Employee benelit provisions relate predominantly to annual leave and Australian long service leave entitlements which will be
uttlised upon emplovees taking their long service leave, and also includes a provision relating to the Group's 2019 long-term
incentive plan tor semor emplovees, payable in 2022 il certain targets are met by the end of’ 2021.

Property provisions predominantly relate to dilapidation provistons on leased propertics. Property provisions will unwitd over

the length of the respective leases, which expire across a varnety of dates, ranging from one to twenty tive vears.

Other predominantly relates to a proviston for student refunds and reflects the Croup's expected lability to refund students for
fees paid up front and where the course was not completed.

21. BORROWINGS

CURRENT BORROWINGS

£30.0m Revolving eredit facility

NON CURRENT BORROWINGS

Secured borrowings at amortised cost
GBP £115.0m Term loan

AUD $88.9m Term loan

AUD $125 7m Term loan

th
g

Interest rate

4.75% + Libor/BBSY

6.00% + Lihor
6.00% + BBSY
6.00% + BBSY

Maturity 2019 2019
£m im

Principal Value

2025 - -
2026 115.0 11L1
2026 47.3 45.7
2026 66.8 64.7
229.1 221.5
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21 BORROWINGS (CONT’D)

Undrawn borrowing facilities

AL 31 December 2019, the Group had available £30.0¢ muillion of undrawn commuitted borrowing facilities. The Group has drawn
these facilitics m full from Muarch 2020, Debt 1ssue and external borrowing costs are amortised to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income over the period of the borrowings using the elfective mnterest method.

At 31 May 2019, Group received term foans amountng to GBP £115 millien and AT $ 214.6 million. as shown abeve. which
have a termination date of 31 Mayv 2026, Of the AUD § 214.6 milhon. an AUD $88.9 million tranche 15 held in the UK and
utilised 1 a net investment hedge against the foretgn operations of the Grroup.

22 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group's polictes and strategies in relation to risk and financial instruments are explained in the Directors’ Repott. Accounting
policies used to account for financial instruments are detailed in Note 1. There are no externally imposed capital requirements
ftom any of our lenders.

Net inyestment hedge
At 31 December 2019, the Group had entered inte a net investment hedge using the AUD $88.9 million drawn in the UK to
hedge the Group's foreign operations. The hedge is deemed 100% eftective up to the value of the loan.

Hedging activities and derivatives

In August 2019, the Group entered into 1wo interest cap agreements to cap the floating interest rates on a 6-monthly basis on
0% of the GBP (£37.5 million) and 30% of AUD term loans ($107.3 million) until 30 Auwgust 2022, covering 30% of the
Group's total leans. These interest rate caps are valued using valuation techniques which employ the use of market observable
mputs. The most frequently applied valuation techniques include forward pricing and swap models using present value
caleulations. Study (Group obtain the values tor these interest rate caps on a quarterly basis from TSBC UK Bank Ple.

Fair values of non-derivative financial assets and liabilities

At 31 December 2019 there is no difference between the carrving amount and fair value of each of the following classes of
fmancial assets and habilities, principally due Lo their short maturity: trade and other receivables, cash at bank and in hand, trade
and other payvables and cwrent borrowings. There is no significant difference between the fair value and carrving amount of
non-current borrowings as the impact ol discounting s not significant.

Foreign currency sensitivity

The Group s primarily exposed to fluctuations in the Australian Dollar and US Deollar. The tollowing table details how the
Giroup's income and cquits would increase on a before tax and exceptional costs basis, given a 10% decrease in the respective
vear-end currencies against Pound Sterling and in accordance with [FRS 7 all other vanables remaining constant A 10%
decrease in the value ol Pound Sterling against the respective vear-end curreneies would have the oppeosite efTect.

Income Equity

Sensitivity Scnsitivity

£fm £m

Australian Dellar 0.7) (13.2)
US Dollar 0.2 0.8)
(her 0.8 0.4
Fquity decrease 0.3 (13.6)

Foreign exchange rates
Period end and average exchange rates per £1.00 are as follows:
31 December 2019

Australian Dollar - period average 1.8365
Australian Dollar - period end 1.8801
US Dollar - period average 1.2770
US Dollar - period end 1.3186
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22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT D)

Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to remain as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the
cost of capital. In order to mamntain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. The Group monitors capital on the
basis of the gearing ratio. Net debt for this purpoese is calculated as the principal amount outstanding of external indebtedness,
including term loans and RCF, less cash and cash equivalents. The ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Total
capital is caleulated as 'equity’ as shown in the balance sheet plus net debt.

2019
£m
Total borrowings (Note 21) 221.5
Less: Total cash and cash equivalents (44.0)
Net Debt 177.5
Total Equity (306.7)
Net debt to equity ratio 58%
23. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM
2019 2019
Number of shares £
A Ordinary shares 846,153 846,153
B Ordinary shares 6,415 6,415
C shares 123,000 147,600
Preference shares 334,824,832 334,824,832
Total share capital and share premium 335,800,400 335,825,000
Movements i shares:
Number of Par value Share Total
shares £ premium £
£

Details
At incorporation i 1 - 1
Subdivision and re-designation of shares 99 - - -
Shares issued on 31 May 2019 333,149,900 332,312,308 837.691 333,149,999
Shares issued on 19 June 2019 1,627,500 1,512,316 137,684 1,656,000
Shares issued on 23 July 2019 997,900 985025 14,975 1,000,000
Shares issued on 16 August 2019 25,000 24,938 62 25,000
335,800,400 334,834,588 990,412 335,825,000

SG Global Topco was incorporated on 14 February 2019 with a single £1 Ordinary Share issucd at par.

On 31 May 2019 the 1 Ordinary Share of £1 was sub-divided into 100 Ordinary Shares of £0.01 each and were re-designated as
100 A Ordinary Shares.

On 31 May 2019 332,303,847 Prefercnce Shares of £1 each were issued at par. Additionally, 846,053 A Ordinary Shares of
£0.01 each were issued at a premium.

On 19 June 2019 1,511,153 Preference Shares of £1 each were issued at par. Additionally, 3,847 B Ordinary Shares and 112,500
C Shares of £0.01 cach were issued at a premium.

On 23 July 2019 984,895 Preference Shares of £1 each were issued at par. Additionally, 2,505 B Ordinary Shares and 10,500 C
shares of £0.01 each were issued at a premium.

On 16 August 2019 24,937 Preference Shares of £1 each were Issued at par. Additionally, 63 B Ordinary Shares of £0.01 each
were issued at a premiurn.
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23. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (CONT D)

Rights, preferences and restrictions
The Ordinan A and Ordinary 13 are considered pari passu as 1if the Ordinary Shares constituted one class ot shares in the case
of dividends.

The preference shares acerue a fixed cumulative preferential dividend at the annual rate of 10% of a sum equal w the entire
nomingl and premium amounts paid up on such Preterence Share. If the dividend 1s not paid. the unpaid amount carries interest
at 10%

Lach Ordinary A and Ordinary B share carny one vote per share. The C Shares and Preterence Shares carry ne voling rights,

24. EMPLOYEES

2019
£m
Stall costs tor the Group during the period:

Wages and salaries 56.1
Social seeurity costs 4.8
Superannuation and other pension costs 3.0
63.9

e

Average monthly number ol people emploved by the Group:"*"

2019
Teaching (I7rect and Indireet) 1.134
Sales. marketing and distribution IR9
Administration 637
2160

E  —— ——

(1) Calendated from the date of acquisition on the 31 May 2019, thus retlecting the 7 months of trade.
(1) Ineludes those directors who were employed by the Group during the period.

The average number of people emploved by the parent company during the peried is nil.
Key management compensation:

Kev management are defined as the Global Executive Team (GI'L). which ts the team of senior management who support the
Chiel Executive Officer in the day to dav management of the Group’s affairs and are involved in strategic decision making,

2019
£m
Salaries and short-term benefits including management incentives 3.1
Post-cmployment benefits 0.1
3.2
Aggregate Directors' remuneration:
The total amount Lor directors' remuneration was as ollows:
2019
im
Salaries and short-term benelits 0.9
0.9
Highest paid director
Salaries and shart-term benefits 0.6
0.6

¥
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25, NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group' s abihties arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising {Tom financing activities are those for which cash flows were. or future eash tlows will be. classitied
wn the Group's conselidated cash flow statement as cash Tows from tinancing activities.

2019
Note Non-cash changes
Financing Acauisition c:c(:;fllt:: Interest Non-cash \(["::1-.(1;’1:2 bgt::f\i\:;z Decembi:'
cash flons movements ¢lement in lease lease Sts 2019
£I;| ‘ operating liability r(-(‘ei\'-il:;:j :“:1(;
activitics  movements iy unw
movements

Sharc capital 23 3358
& share 3358
prenium
Borrowimgs 21 (27.4) 2525 (2.9 (0.7) 2215
l'um_nuc lease 14 0.5 (5.9) 0.2 (0.3 (53
receivables ’
[.ease 1Y 1294
L 0. 392
liabilities (10.8) 139 (3.0 4.0
Total 298.1 3858 2.m (2.%) 1.0 (0.3) 0N 681.2

26. FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments
'The Group had no capital commitments at the period end.

Contingent liabilities
The Company and its subsidiary undertakings are, [rom time to time. partics to legal proceedings and claims, which arisc in the
ordinan course of business. The Directors do not expeet there to be a material cash outtlow on any items known at the period

end.

The Group's activities are monitored by a number of regulatory bodies depending on the jurisdiction ol the operation. Fron time
lo ime. there is a risk that the Group may not comply with all requirements imposed by the relevant regulater giving risc to @
risk of refund of fees. penalties or both.

The Group had £10.5 million in outstanding bank guarantees at the end of the period against an AU $25.0 million lease lnce
facility held with HSBC UK Bank Ple. The majority of these are guarantees against {uture rental commitments. In February

2020 the value of oufstanding bank guarantees reduced by £1.2m resulting in outstanding bank guarantees of £9.3 million.

In addition the Group provides guarantecs in the ordinary course of business, which correspond mainly to lease guarantees in
respect of various buildings, for which no linancial exposure has been identified at the period end.

Ne other contingent liabilities noted.

A
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27. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

There were no contracts with SG Global Topeo I.imited (the Company) or anv of its subsidiartes existing during or at the end ol
the financial period in which a direetor of the Company was materially interested. The Group has taken advantage of the
exemption available under TAS 24 Related party disclosures’ not to diselose transactions and balances between Group entitics
that have been eliminated on conselidation.

Revenue of £18.333,136 and a marketing contribution of £317.633 was received from the joint venture The University of Svdney
I'oundation Program Prv Ltd during the period. Related party pavables of £2.579.688 are owing 1o the University of Svdney

Foundation Program Pty Ltd a1 31 December 2014

I'he Group paid Kugler Advisory Ltd. a company in which a director of The Group is a director and sharcholder. £37 500 in
consultaney fees during the period. with £nil outstanding at 31 December 2019,

28. ULTIMATE PARENT UNDERTAKING AND CONTROLLING PARTY

The immediate parent undertaking 15 Ardian LBO Fund VI3 S.1L.P

The ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party 1s Ardian LBO Tund VI B S.L.P. a company incorporated in Irance.

29. BUSINESS COMBINATION

Om 31 May 2019, the Group acquired 100% of the share capital of and obuained control of EDU UK Topeo imited ¢ Study
Group). Studv Group s the Jeading international provider of international edueation, driving success for its students and
partners. [ts core business is the delivery of ITigher Education and Pathway programmes. Studv Group was acquired by SG
(flobal Bideo Limiled o facilitate the change in ownership from Providence Equity Partners to Ardian 130 Fund VI3 S.1.P.
Acquisition-related costs (included in exceptional costs within administrative expenses Note 8) amount to £6 0 million.

The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilitics assumed are as set out in the table below,

The following table summarises the consideration paid for Study Group and the amounts of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed recognised at the acquisition date.

Fair Value

31 May
2019
£m
Total consideration 2875
Fair value of net assets acquired
Property, plant and equipment 228
Right-ol-use assets 1265
[nvestments 0.3
[dentitiable intangible assets 4222
Pelerred tax assets 19.9
Cash acquired 0.2
Finance lease receivables 59
Financial assels 1153
Financiat abilities (221.0)
Deferred tax liabilities (1.3
[.case liabilities (13923
Outstandmg borrowings (252.5)
Fair value of net assets acquired (4.8)
Goodwill (Note 9) 2923

h
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29. BUSINESS COMBINATION (CONT D)

Group
31 May 2019
£m

Net cash flow arising on acquisitions:
Cash consideration (287 3)
Cash and cash equivalent balances acquired 6.2
Transaction costs (Note R) (6.0
(287.3)

There is no further consideration pavable.

The goodwill relates to both the value of the university partnerships and brands bevond the forecast period ol 30 vears, together
with the value inherent in acquiring the business as 4 going concern rather than acquiring a group of assets idividually.

All revenue included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income {or the period is atiributable to the acquisition of
Study Group. Tf the acquisition of Study Group had been completed on the tirst day of the tinancial year, continuing group
revenues {or the vear would have been £275.7 million and continuing operating profit would have been £13 .4 million.

Insendi

Studv Group acquired 100% of the share capital of and oblained control of’ Insendt Limited (Insendi™) on 26 Februan 2020,
Insendt is the leadmg online learning platform innovator based in the UK. The primary reason for this business combination is
Lo bring to Study Group a high-quality online leaming platform and associated capabilities. Inttial consideration of £10m (net ol
the cash scquired of £1.0m) was paid on completion and contingent consideration will become pavable based on various targels
including tuture EBITDA achieyements, new partner contracts and partner renewals. likelv to be between £3m - £10m.

The provisional fair values and carrying amounts recognised at the acquisition date for nsendi are as follows:

£m

Net Working Capital (0.5
Partner relationships 2.6
Technology Intanpible 2.9
Deterred tax (1.0y
4.0

CGroodwill 12.9
Fair value of assets Acquired 16.9
Cash and accrued Consideration 17.7
Cash Acquired on Acquisition {U.8)
16.9

The profits carned during the period since acquisition to 31 October 2020 amount to £0.3m
30. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Study Group acquired Insendi Limited (“Insendi™) on 26 February 2020, Insendi is an online learning platform based in the UK
that olTers a learning experience platform und a range of services that help business schools and universitics implement new
models of online education. Reler to Note 29 for turther details.

The impact that Covid-19 has had on the business and consequently on the Dircctors’ geing coneern assessment 1s detailed in
the Strategic Report on page 6.

h
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SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED

PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 December 2019

31 December

2019
Note £m
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings 349.5
Investments 3 1.0
354.5
NET ASSETS 350.5
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT
Share capilal 4 3348
Share premium reserie L.t
Retained earmings 14.7
TOTAL EQUITY 350.5

The company reporied a profit for the lnancial period ended 31 December 2014 of £14.7m.

The financial statements and notes on pages 39 to 63 were approved by the Board of directors on 11 December 2020 and were
signed on its behalf by Nick Williams.

N Williams
Dircctor SG Global Tepeo Limited Registered no. 11827427

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Hnancial statements.



SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED

PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the period ended 31 December 2019

Ordinary Share Retained Total Equity

Share Capital Premium Earnings
£m Reserve £m

£m

£m

Profit for the period - - 14,7 4.7
Issue of share capital 334.8 1.0 - 335.8
Balance at 31 December 2019 334.8 1.0 14.7 350.5

I'he accompany ing notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1.1. GENERAL INFORMATION
Accounting policies for the period ended 31 December 2019

SG Global Topeo Limited (formerly Surrey Topeo Limited) was incorperated on 14 Februan 2019 and 15 a company
meorporated, domiciled and registered m the United Kingdom. The company name was changed from Surrey Topeo Linuted
to SG Global Topeo Limited on 29 May 2019, The {inancial statements were authorised forissue by the Board of Directors
on 1} December 2020

1.2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

Fhese fNnanclal statements have been prepared i accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framework ¢ I'RS 1017 on the hustorical cost basis.

In preparing these tinancial statements, the Company applies the recognition, measurement and disclosure requirements ol
International Financial Reporiing Standards as adopted by the EU ("Adopled 1FRS™), but makes amendments where
necessary tn order o comply with the Companies Act 20006.

In these financial statements the Company has applied the exemptions available under FRS 101 in respect of the following
disclosures:
e acash flow statement and related notes: and
e ihe requirements of JAS 24 Related Party Transactions and has. therefore. not disclosed transactions between the
Company and its whollv owned subsidiaries: and
o the ceffect of new but not vet effeetive IFRSs
s certamn disclosures required by 1FRS 13 Fair T aliwe Measirement and the disclosures required by [FRS 7 Financral
Instrument Disclosures

As permitled by Scection 408 of the Companies Ael 2006, a separate income stalement lor the Company has not been
mcluded in these naneial statements. As permitted by the audit fee disclosure regulations, disclosure of non-audit fees
information 1s not included m respeet of the Company . No signilicant judgements and estimates tor the Company are noted.

1.3. INVESTMENTS
I the Company's financial staterments, mvestments m subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less any impairment.
1.4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Companies operations expose it to a variety of finaneial risks that include the offcets of changes in foreign curreney
exchange rates. market interest rates, eredit risk and its Hquidits position. The Company has in place a risk management
programime that secks to limit adverse eflecls on the financial performance of the Company which 1s outlined in the
Dircetors” Report.

1.5. FOREIGN CURRENCY

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the tinancial statements of each of the Company s entitics arc measured using the curreney of the primary
cconomic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional curreney”). The consolidated {inancial statements are
presented in Pound Sterling. which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency .

Transactions and balances

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded i Pound Sterling at the exchange rates ruling at the date of
the transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from such transactions are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income, except when delerred i equity as qualifsing cash NMow hedges. Monctary assets and liabiliiies
denominated n toreign curmencics are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date and any exchange
differences are taken to the statement of comprehensive income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses relating 1o foreign currency Joans and other foreign exchange adjustments are ineluded
within finance income and expensces.



SG GLOBAL TOPCO LIMITED
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OPERATING RESULT

The auditor’s remuncration for audit and other services 1s diselosed in Note 3 to the consolidated tinancial statements. and
has been borne by the Company 's subsidiary undertakings.

INVESTMENTS

The movements iz the net book value of interests in subsidiary undertakings are as follows:

£m

Current period acquisitions 1.0

COMPANY SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

Details of the subsidiany undertaking of the Company , which are inctuded in the [naneial statements. are set oul below,

Country of Ownership Natur
Name of Entity Incorporation Interest % e
Directly Controiled Entities:
SG Global FinCo Limited United Kingdom 100 Holding
Details of indirectly controlled entities are detatled in note 13,
4+ SHARE CAPITAL
2019 2019
Number of £
shares
A Ordinary shares 846,153 816,054
B3 Ordinary shares 6,415 6,415
C shares 123,000 147,600
Preference shares 334,824,832 334,824,832
Total share capital and share premium 335,800,400 335824901
Refer to Note 23 i the Group aceounts for detatls of movements m shares.
Righits, preferences and restrictions
The Ordinary A and Ordinary I3 are considered pari passu as il the Ordinary Shares constituted one class of shares in the
case of dividends.
The preference shares acerue a fixed cumulative preterential dividend at the annual rate ol 10% ol a sum cqual to the entire
tormipal and premium amounts paid up on such Preference Share. If the dividend is not paid. the unpaid amount carries
interest at 10%.
Each Ordinary A and Ordinary 13 share carry on¢ vete per share. The C Shares and Preference Shares carry no veting rights.
5. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES
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There were no emplovees i the current period other than the directors who were remunerated by a subsidiary undertaking.
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ULTIMATE PARENT UNDERTAKING AND CONTROLLING PARTY

['he immediate parent undertaking is Ardian [.B0O Fund VI B S.]..P

The ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party 18 Ardian [.BO Fund VI B S.1..P, a compamy incerporated in France.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has taken advantlage of the exemption in IAS 24 from the requirement to disclose transactions between the
Company and 1its wholly owned subsidiaries.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
Study Group acquired Insendi Limited (" Insendi™} on 26 Februarv 2020. Insendi 1s an online learning platform based in the
tJK that offers a learning experience platform and a range of services that help business schools and universities implement

tiew maodels of anline education. Reter ta Nate 29 ol the Group Financial Statements {or further details

The impact thiat Covid-19 has had on the business and consequently on the Directors” poing concern assessnient 1s detailed
in the Stratepic Report on page 6.



